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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Allianz EFU Health Insurance 

Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 

December 2020, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the 
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 

necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, the statement 
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow 
statement together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by 
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the profit, total comprehensive 
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

I Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) 
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the 
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG global organization 
of independent member firms affilialed with KPMG International Limited, a pnvate English company limited by guarantee. 
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Emphasis of matter 

We draw attention to note 23.1.2.2 to the financial statements, which describes that 
the Company has challenged the scope and applicability of the provincial sales tax on 
services on the premium from health insurance business in a provincial High Court. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises of the information included in the annual report but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other Information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with lSAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 

also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the 
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), 

b) the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow 

statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with 
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), and are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year 

were for the purpose of the company's business; and 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 

of 1980) 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 

Amyn Pirani. 

Date: 12 March 2021 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Karachi 













Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited 
Notes to the Financiat Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1 Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited ("the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 May 2000 as a Public Limited 
Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and has its registered office at D-136 
Block-4 K.D.A. Scheme No. 5 Clifton Karachi. The principal activity of the Company is to sell Health Insurance cover in 
Pakistan. 

The Company was authorized to undertake Window Takaful Operations (WTO) on 14 March 2017 by Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on General Window Takaful Operations in Pakistan. 
The Company commenced Window Takaful Operations on 1 April 2017. 

1.2 A novel strain of cororiavirus (COVID-19) was classified as a pandemic by the world health organization on 11 March 2020, 
impacting countries globally including Pakistan. Government of Pakistan has taken certain measures to reduce the spread of 
the COVID-19 including lockdown of businesses, suspension of flight operations, intercity movements, cancellation of major 
events etc. These measures have resulted in an overall economic slowdown, disruptions to various businesses. However, 
currently, the potential impacts from COVID-19 remain uncertain, including, among other things, on economic conditions, 
businesses and consumers. As per the initial assessment by the management, the company is not likely to have an impact as 
the sale of health / takaful cover in Pakistan was on going even during the period in which business activities were suspended 
by government of Pakistan. Furthermore, the management has also made assessment of future profitability projection and as 
per the projections the company continues to earn adequate profits and remain solvent. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, the 
Insurance Rules 2017, Takaful Rules 2012 and General Takaful Accounting Regulation 2019. In case requirements differ, the 
provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Rules, 2017, Insurance 
Accounting Regulations 2017, Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019 shall prevail. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the format issued by the SECP through the Insurance 
Rules, 2017, vide SRO 89(1)12017 dated 09 February 2017. 

As required under regulation 6(3) of the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019, total assets, liabilities and profit of the 
Window Takaful Operations - Operator's fund are disclosed as a single line item in statement of financial position and profit and 
loss account respectively. Supporting notes where considered necessary for the understanding of the users of these financial 
statements are enclosed as part of notes to these financial statements. 

A separate set of financial statements of the Window Takaful Operations of the Company have been prepared as per the 
requirements of Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019. 

2.1 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments which are stated at 
their fair values. 

2.2 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 
All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand. 

2.3 Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Accounting and Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan 

2.3.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that are 
effective in the current year 

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant 
effect on the Company and therefore not detailed in these financial statements. 



2.3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that are 
not effective in current year 

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the 
amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2021: 

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) — the International Accounting Standards Board (the 
Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with earlier application 
permitted. Under the standard's previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease modifications 
and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease 
liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has 
provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess 
whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if they were not 
lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met: 

The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, 
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 

- Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and 

- There is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease. 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, lAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 is applicable for 
annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendments 
introduce a practical expedient to account for modifications of financial assets or financial liabilities if a change results 
directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an 'economically equivalent' basis. In these cases, changes will be accounted for 
by updating the effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 for lessees when accounting 
for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow a series of exemptions from the regular, 
strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The 
amendments apply retrospectively with earlier application permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely 
because of changes resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met. 

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to lAS 37) effective for the annual period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2022 amends lAS I by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of fulfilling a 
contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to 
apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual 
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative 
information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying 
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as 
appropriate, at the date of initial application. 

- Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020: 

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2022: 

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and 
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf, when it applies the '10 per 
cent' test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. 

- IFRS 16— The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of 
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential 
confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 

- lAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of lAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows 
when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique. 



Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to lAS 16) effective for the annual period 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while bringing an item of 
property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management e.g. when testing etc. are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. 
The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of lAS 2. The standard also removes 
the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments 
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary 
for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period 
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the 
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or 
other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented. 

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual Framework, issued in 
May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An 
entity shall apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of 
the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time or 
earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in 
IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018. 

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to lAS 1) effective for the annual period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified 
as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of 
the entity's right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with lAS 8. 

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and lAS 
28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also 
introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained 
interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the 
completion of a broader review. 

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to lFRS 4) - In response to concerns 
regarding temporary accounting mismatches and volatility, and increased costs and complexity, the Board issued 
amendments to lFRS 4 Insurance Contracts in 2017. The two optional solutions raised some considerations which 
required detailed analysis and management judgement. On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance Contracts in June 
2020, the end date for applying the two options under the IFRS 4 amendments was extended to 1 January 2023, aligned 
with the effective date of IFRS 17. 

The Company has determined that it is eligible for the temporary exemption option since the company has not previously 
applied any version of IFRS 9 , its activities are predominantly connected with insurance as the percentage of the total 
carrying amount of its liabilities connected with insurance relative to the total carrying amount of all its liabilities is greater 
than 90 percent and the company doesn't engage in significant activities unconnected with insurance based on historical 
available information. Under the temporary exemption option, the company can defer the application of IFRS 9 until the 
application IFRS 17 (applicable for the accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022). 

To determine the appropriate classification of financial assets under IFRS 9, an entity would need to assess the contractual 
cash flows characteristics of any financial asset. Indeed, the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified 
dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI") i.e. 
cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. In a basic lending arrangement, consideration for the time 
value of money and credit risk are typically the most significant elements of interest. 

IFRS 9 defines the terms "principal" as being the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition, and the "interest" as being 
compensation for (i) the time value of money, and (ii) the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a 
particular period of time. 

The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value during that 
period for the following two groups of financial assets separately: 



a) financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPi) on the principal 
amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the definition of held for trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated 
on a fair value basis, and 

b) all other financial assets. 

2020 2019 
Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test 

FInancial assets Fair value Fair value 

Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test 

Change in 
unrealized 

Fair value gaIn I (toss) FaIr value 
during the 

year 

Change in 
unrealized 
loss during 

the year  

Change in 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

Change in 
unrealIzed 
gain during 

the year 

Cash and bank 88,060 

in '000) (Rupees 

- 30,422 - 
Investments in equity securities - available for sale 5,837 3,794 2,043 (734) - 
Investments in debt securities - available for sale 808,979 (9,264) - 592134 (7151 
Loans and other receivables 70,989 49,163 - 

Insurance I reinsurance receivables * 358,938 504,992 - 

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims • 137,665 161,541 - 
Window takaful operations - Operators fund - - 70,823 68,441 - 

Total 5,837 3,794 1,635,454 (9,264) 2.043 (734) 1.409,693 (715) 

2020 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the SPPi test 

Cashandbank 
Investments in debt securities - available for s 
Loans and other receivables 
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 
Reinsurarice recoveries against 
outstanding claims• 

Window takaful operations - 
Operator's fund 

Totat 

Cash and bank 
Loans and other receivables 
Insurance! reinsurance receivables* 

Reinsurance recoveries against 
outstanding claims * 

Window takaful operations - 
Operatofsfund 

Totai 

AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- BBB- Not rated 

67,876 
- 

1,458 

12,896 
- 

9 

in '000) (Rupees 

5,170 762 474 320 
- - - 

40,443 

137,665 

816 - 

137 

- 

100 
808,979 
70,989 

318,495 

68,540 

69,334 12,905 183,278 762 1,290 320 131 1,267,103 

2019 

W 
-  

Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the SPPI test 

AA .AA- A+ A A- BOB- Not rated 

11,787 

732 

7,028 

6 

in '000) (Rupees 

2,032 6,053 2,448 650 

- - - 
- 

161,541 - 

- - 89 - 

64 
- 
- 

- 

342 18 
49,163 

504,992 

67,614 

12,519 7.034 163,573 6,053 2,537 650 64 342 621.787 

The carrying amounts of these financial assets measured applying lAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 The significant accounting policies as stated below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements. 

3.2 Insurance contracts 

Insurance contracts represent contracts with policy holders and reinsurers. Those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk 
from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the 
policyholders are insurance policy contracts. The Company enters into health insurance contracts with corporate clients and individuals in Pakistan. 

Accident and health insurance contract mainly compensate Hospitalisation and outpatient medical coverage to the insured. These contracts are generally one year 
contracts. 

Those insurance contracts that are issued by one insurer (the reinsurer) to compensate another insurer (the cedant) for losses on one or more contracts issued by the 
cedarit are reinsurance contracts. The Company enters in to reinsurance contracts with local reinsurers. The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal 
course of business in order to limit the potential for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period as the 
related premiums for the direct and facultative business being reinsured. 

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its period, even if the insurance risk reduces 
significantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired. 

3.2.1 Premium (Including provision for unearned premium) 

Premiums and administrative surcharge under a policy are recognized at the time of writing of insurance policy. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the 
period of the policy, premium is recognized as revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. The portion of premium written relating to the unexpired 
period of coverage is recognized as unearned premium by the Company. This liability is calculated as a proportionate of the gross premium of each insurance policy, 
as specified in the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017. 

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less provision for doubtful debts, if any. if there is 
objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognizes it as impairment loss. 



3.2.2 Reinsurance ceded 

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for losses arising from 
certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period as the related premiums for the direct or 
accepted reinsurance business being reinsured. 

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Balances payable are estimated in a manner consistent with 
the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from 
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims associated with the 
reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are not offset against related 
insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance 
assets as required by Insurance Ordinance, 2000. Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are 
extinguished or expire. 

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on balance sheet date. If there is an objective evidence that the 
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and 
recognizes it as impairment loss. 

3.2.3 Claims 

Insurance claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, related internal and external claims handling 
costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous 
years. 

The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred upto the date of statement of financial position which is based on the 
best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed on or before the end of the financial year and measured at the undiscounted value of 
the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim except as 
otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract. The liability for claims include related to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) and expected claim settlement cost. 

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made at the date of statement of financial position on the advice of actuary 
in accordance with the requirements of SECP circular No. 9 of 2016. IBNR claim have been estimated using Chain Ladder (CL) method 
and claims run-off triangles are based on reported claims and quarterly development period. The IBNR provision also include provision, 
if any, required for claim incurred but not enough reported (IBNER). 

3.2.4 Reinsurance recoveries 

Claims recoveries from the reinsurer are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery 
are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received. 

3.2.5 Commission 

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognised as an expense in accordance with pattern 
of recognition of premium revenue by applying the proportionate method. 

Commission income from reinsurers is recognized at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the Company. This 
income is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to 
which it relates. 

3.2.6 Premium deficiency reserve 

The Company is required as per Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and IFRS-4 'Insurance Contracts", to maintain a provision in 
respect of premium deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium reserve is not adequate to meet the expected 
future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses, including reinsurance expense, commissions and other underwriting 
expenses, to be incurred after balance sheet date in respect of policies in that class of business at the balance sheet date. The 
movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense and the same shall be recognised as a liability. For this 
purpose, loss ratio estimates are based on historical claim development. Judgment is used in assessing the extent to which past trends 
may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims. If the ratio is adverse, premium deficiency is determined. 

Based on operating ratio for the expired period, the management considers that the unearned premium reserve as at the year end is 
adequate to meet the expected future liability after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses, expected to be incurred after the 
balance sheet date in respect of policies enforce at the balance sheet date. Hence, no provision for the same has been made in these 
financial statements. The valuation of premium deficiency reserve is done by using actuarial methods by projecting expected future 
claims and expenses to be incurred after the valuation date for the portfolio inforce as at the balance sheet date. 

3.3 Investments 

All investments are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration given and include transaction costs except for held for trading in 
which case transaction costs are charged to the profit and loss account. All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery 
within the time frame established by regulations or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when 
the Company commits to purchase or sell investments. 



3.3.1 Held for trading 

Investments which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements are 
considered as held for trading. After initial recognition, these are measured at fair values with any resulting gains or losses recognised 
directly in the profit and loss account. Subsequent to initial recognition these are measured at fair value by reference to quoted market 
prices with the resulting gain and loss being included in the net profit or loss for the period in which it arises. 

Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when the Company's right to receive such dividend and bonus shares 
is established. 

3.3.2 Held to maturity 

At the time of acquisition, investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity, are 
classified as held to maturity. 

Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment in value, if any. Any premium paid or discount 
availed on acquisition of held to maturity investment is deferred and amortised over the term of investment using the effective yield. 

These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged to the profit and loss 
account. 

3.3.3 Available for sale investments 

Available-for-sale Investments are those non-derivative instruments that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any 
other category. 

At the time of acquisition, investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to the 
need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available-for-sale. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, these are remeasured at fair value. Surplus I deficit on revaluation from one reporting date to other 
is taken to other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On derecognition or impairment of available-for-
sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss for the 
period within Statement of Comprehensive Income. Whereas, any reversal in impairment is taken in Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 

These are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged to the profit 
and loss account. 

3.4 Operating fixed assets and depreciation 

3.4.1 Tangible 

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, 
whereby the depreciable amount of an operating asset is written off over its estimated useful life. 

Depreciation is charged from the month the asset is available for use. While on disposal, it is charged upto the month in which the asset 
is disposed off. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is 
significant. 

The carrying value of tangible fixed assets is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that this 
carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable 
amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the period in which they are incurred. 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense. 

3.4.2 Right of Use Assets 

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful life of right-of-use asset or end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of 
assets are determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any. 

3.4.3 Intangible 

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is charged over the estimated useful 
life of the asset on a systematic basis to income applying the straight line method. Amortisation is calculated from the month the assets 
are available for use. While on disposal, amortisation is charged upto the month in which the asset is disposed off. 



The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that this 
carrying value may not be recoverable, if any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable 
amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 

3.5 Taxation 

3.5.1 Current 

Provision for current taxation is the higher of the amount computed on taxable income at the current tax rate after taking into account 
tax credits I rebates, if any, and the minimum tax computed at the prescribed rate on turnover. The charge for current tax also include 
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalized during the 
current year for such years. 

3.5.2 Deferred 

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the 
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all 
deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that the 
future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the asset is utilised or 
the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

3.6 Employee retirement benefits 

3.6.1 Defined contribution plan 

The Company operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the 
Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. Obligation for contribution to the defined contribution 
provident fund are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account. 

3.6.2 Compensated absences 

The liability towards compensated absences accumulated by employees is provided in the period in which they are earned. 

3.7 Foreign currencies transactions 

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet 
date. Gain and losses on translation are taken into income currently. 

3.8 Revenue recognition 

Premium income (refer note 3.2.1) 

Commission income is being taken to the profit and loss account, on a time proportionate basis, in accordance with the pattern of 
recognition of reinsurance premium to which they relate. 

Return on bank balances and government securities is recognized on accrual basis taking into account the effective yield on the 
investments. 

Dividend 

Gain I loss on redemption I sale of investments is included in profit and loss account in the period of sale I redemption. 

3.9 Management expenses 

Management expenses represent directly attributable expenses and appropriate proportion of indirect expenses. 

3.10 Creditors, accruals and provisions 

Liabilities for creditors and other amount payable are carried at fair value which is the cost of the consideration to be paid in future for 
goods and services. 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can 
be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 



3.11 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when the company 
has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realised the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

3.12 Dividends and appropriations to reserves 

Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recorded in the year in which these are approved. 

3.13 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expire or is transferred 
along with the risk and reward of ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liabilities is recognised in the profit and 
loss account of the current period. 

3.14 Impairment 

A financial asset is assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A 
financial asset is considered to be impaired if there is objective evidence that one or more events have had a negative effect on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

The carrying amount of non financial assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. The 
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

All impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account. Provisions for impairment are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Changes in the provisions are recognized as income or expense. 

3.15 Liabilities against leases for right of use assets 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing 
rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is 
re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of 
whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

4. USE OF ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of 
which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The estimates and judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements are included in the following accounts notes: 

Note 
Allocation of management expenses 3.9 
Premium (including provision for unearned premium) 3.2. 1 
Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts 3.2.2 
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 3.2.3 
Premium deficiency reserve 3.2.6 
Investments 3.3 
Fixed assets 3.4 
Impairment 3.14 
Taxation 3.5 

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENTS 31 December 31 December 
Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Tangible operating assets 5.1.1 31,443 36,315 
Right-of-use assets 5.1.2 39,805 57,871 
Capital work-in-progress 5.1.3 5,405 -  

76,653 94,186 

Cost of above assets include cost of tangible operating assets amounting to Rs. 58.32 million having net book value equal to NIL at the 
reporting date and are still in use.(31 December 2019: Rs. 49.39 million). 



5.1 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENTS 2020 
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Book value Rate of 

As at As at As at As at As at Depreciation 

1 January Additions I 31 December 1 January On Charge for 31 December 31 December 

2020 (deletions) 2020 2020 Disposal the year 2020 2020 
(Rupees in '000) % 

5.1.1 Owned 

Lease hold improvements 13,913 2,067 15,980 13,913 86 13,999 1,981 50% 

Furniture & fixtures 7,450 105 7,555 6,622 179 6,801 754 10% 

Officeequipment 12,419 1,477 13,177 10,770 (665) 741 10,846 2,331 10%-20% 

(719) 
Computers and I.T equipment 31,407 2,361 33,248 25,287 (495) 3,562 28,354 4,894 33% 

(520) 
Motor vehicles 56,540 5,143 59,970 28,822 (1,711) 11,376 38,487 21,483 20% 

(1,713)  
121,729 8,201 129,930 85,414 (2,871) 15,944 98,487 31,443  

5.1.2 Leased - Right of use assets 

Office Buildings 76,806 1,005 77,811 18,935 19,071 38,006 39,805 25% - 33% 

76,806 1,005 77,811 18,935 19,071 38,006 39,805  

31 December 31 December 

5.1.3 Capital work-in-progress 2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

Advance to a supplier 5,405  

2019 
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Book value Rate of 

As at As at As at As at As at Depreciation 

1 January Additions I 31 December 1 January On Charge for 31 December 31 December 

2019 (deletions) 2019 2019 Disposal theyear 2019 2019 
(Rupees in '000) % 

Owned 

Lease hold improvements 13,913 13,913 13,736 177 13,913 50% 

Furniture&fixtures 7,438 12 7,450 6,432 190 6,622 828 10% 

Officeequipment 12,255 570 12,419 10,278 (388) 880 10,770 1,649 10%-20% 

(406) 
Computers and iT equipment 27,588 4,687 31,407 22,374 (788) 3,701 25,287 6,120 33% 

(868) 
Motorvehicles 58,424 3,123 56,540 22,069 (4,258) 11,011 28,822 27,718 20% 

(5,007)  
119,618 2,111 121,729 74,889 (5,434) 15,959 85,414 36,315  

Leased - Right of use assets 

Office Buildings 76,167 639 76,806 - 18,935 18,935 57,871 25% - 33% 



5.2 Disposal of tangible operating assets 

Details of tangible assets disposed off during the year are as follows: 

Accumulated 
Category of Assets and Mode of Disposal Original Cost Book Value 

Depreciation 
Sale 

Proceeds 
Sold to 

2020 

Computers and l.T equipment (Negotiation) 

(Rupees in '000)  

361 361 - 9 Mr. All Kamran 
160 133 27 45 Claim received from EFU General Insurance Ltd - a related party 
521 494 27 54 

Office equipment (Negotiation) 
321 304 17 42 Mr. Muhammad Siddque 
286 267 19 88 Claim received from EFU General Insurance Ltd - a related party 
44 31 13 15 Tariq Refrigeration 
30 30 - 3 Mr. Nasir Khan 
29 26 3 4 Mr. Muhammad Saeed 

9 7 2 1 Mr. Hameed GuI 
719 665 54 153 

Vehicles (Negotiation) 
1,039 1,039 975 Mr.AunAli 

673 673 450 Mr. Hassan Ahmed 
1,712 1,712 1,425 

2,952 2871 81 1,632 

2019 

(Rupees in '000) 

6,281 5,434 847 4,251 



5.3 Intangible assets 2020  
Cost Accumulated Amortization Book value  

As at As at As at As at As at 

1 January Additions I 31 December 1 January On Charge for 31 December 31 December Rate of 

2020 (deletions) 2020 2020 Disposal the year 2020 2020 Amortisation 
(Rupees in '000) % 

LT.Softwares 33,832 1,257 35,072 
(17) 

Website 275 275 

34,107 1,240 35,347 

29,041 (17) 3,779 32,803 2,269 33.3% 

275 275 33.3% 

29,316 (17) 3,779 33,078 2,269 

2019 
Cost Accumulated Amortization Book value 

As at As at As at As at As at 

1 January Additions I 31 December 1 January On Charge for 31 December 31 December Rate of 

2019 (deletions) 2019 2019 Disposal the year 2019 2019 Amortisation 

(Rupees in 000) % 

l.T.Softwares 33,087 808 33,832 
(63) 

Website 275 - 275 

33,362 745 34,107 

24,596 (63) 4,508 29,041 4,791 33.3% 

275 275 - 33.3% 

24,871 (63) 4,508 29,316 4,791 

5.3.1 Cost of above assets include cost of intangible assets amounting to Rs. 26.93 million having net book value equal to NIL at the reporting date and are still in use (31 December 2019: Rs. 22.73 million). 

6. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES - available for sale 
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Cost Provision for Carrying Cost Provision for Carrying Value 
impairment Value impairment 

(Rupees in '000)  

Related Parties 
Listed shares (Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limtied) 6.1 18,674 (16,631) 2,043 18,674 (16,631) 2,043 

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net
- 3,794 - -  charged to other comprehensive income

18,674 (16,631) 5,837 18,674 (16,631) 2,043 

6.1 Details of investment in equity securities - available for sale 

 

Number of Shares  
31 December 31 December 

2020 2019 

Face Value 
Per Share 

Market Value 

Name of Investee Company 
31 December 31 December 

2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Investment Bank I Companies 
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited - a related party 178,614 178,614 10 5,837 2,043 

       

178,614 178,614 5,837 2,043 

       

Note 



6.2 Movement in (reversal) / provision for impairment against available for Related Others Total 
sale equity securities Party 

(Rupees in '000)  

Opening balance as at 1 January 2019 15,897 26,736 42,633 
Charge for the year 734 734 
Reversal of impairment - on sale (26,736) (26,736) 
Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 16,631 - 16,631  

Opening balance as at I January2020 16,631 - 16,631 
Reversal of impairment - on sale - - -  
Closing balance as at 31 December 2020 16 631 16,631 

7. INVESTMENT IN DEBT SECURITIES - 
available for sale 

Government Securities 
Term Finance Certificate 

31 December2020 31 December2019 
Cost Provision for Carrying Cost Provision for Carrying Value 

imoairment Value imoairment 
(Rupees in '000)  

7.1 813,409 - 813,409 587,300 - 587,300 
7.2 39 896 (39,896) 39,896 (39,896) -  

853,305 (39,896) 813,409 627,196 (39,896) 587,300 

Note 

(Deficit) I surplus on revaluation of 
available for sale investments - net 
charged to other comprehensive income - (4,430) 4,834 

853,305 (39,896) 808,979 627,196 (39,896) 592,134 

7.1 Government securities 

Type of Security Effective 
(%) 

Maturity 
date 

Profit Face value Carrying value 
payment 2020 2019 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000) --- --- (Rupees in '000) 

Pakistan Investment Bonds 

PIBs -3 years(note 7.1.1) 14.01 -14.02 12-Jul-21 Half yearly 65,000 65,000 62,818 59,117 

PIBs -3 years 7.20-7.65 19-Sep-22 Half yearly 685,000 700,931 - 

PIBs -3 years 11.55-11.71 19-Sep-22 Half yearly 300,000 282,000 

750,000 365,000 763,749 341,117 

Treasury Bills 

T-Bills 3 Months (2020 Purchase) 7.16 14-Jan-21 On maturity 30,000 29,925 

T-Bills 3 Months (2020 Purchase) 7.11 11-Mar-21 On maturity 20,000 - 19,735 - 

T-Bills 3 Months (2019 Purchase) 13.64 2-Jan-20 On maturity 155,000 154,944 

T-Bills 12 Months (2019 Purchase) 12.72 8-Oct-20 On maturity 100 000 91,239 
50,000 255,000 49,660 246,183 

Government Securities 800 000 620,000 813,409 587,300  

7.1.1 Government Securities having face value of Rs. 57 million (31 December 2019: Rs.57 million) have been deposited with State Bank of Pakistan as 
minimum statutory deposit as required by Section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. 

7.2 Term Finance Certificates 

Name of investee Effective Maturity Payment 
company profit(%) date mode 

Face value Carrying value 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000) --- 
2020 2019 

--- (Rupees in 000) 

Azgard Nine Limited 5.88 20-Sep-17 On maturity 3,273 3,273 3,273 3,273 

Azgard Nine Limited Zero Coupon 1-Apr-17 On maturity 1,792 1,792 1,792 1,792 

Agritech Limited 9.14 1-Dec-17 On maturity 29,976 29,976 29,976 29,976 

Agritech Limited 11 1-Jan-17 On maturity 4855 4855 4855 4,855 
39,896 39,896 39,896 39,896 

Provision for impairment (39,896) (39,896) (39,896) (39,896) 

Term Finance Certificates 

7.3 Breakup of (deficit) / surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale investments Note 31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments 6 & 7 (636) 4,834 

Less: Deferred tax assetl(liability) 184 (1,402) 
(452) 3,432 



8. LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good Note 31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Accrued investment income 19,648 6,189 
Deposits 12,619 11,817 
Advance to suppliers 15 78 
Loans to key management personal 8.1 22,865 5,215 
Loans to employees 8.2 1,900 1,516 
Due from a hospital 12,394 19,825 
Other receivables 8.3 1,563 4,601 

71,004 49,241 

8.1 This include interest bearing unsecured loan - considered good and charged profit ranging between 8.23% to 8.50% per annum to key 
management persons amounting Rs. 22.86 million (31 December 2019: Rs. 5.21 million) and is repayable by August 2025. 

8.2 This include interest bearing unsecured loan - considered good and charged profit ranging between 8.28% to 9.34% per annum to non 
key management personal employees amounting Rs. 1.90 million (31 December 2019: Rs. 1.15 million) and is repayable by October 
2021. 

8.3 This includes Rs. 1.43 million (31 December 2019: Rs.0.635 million) due from Operator's fund of window takaful operations on account 
of expenses incurred on their behalf. 

INSURANCE I REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES 
Note - Unsecured and considered good 

31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in 000)  

Due from insurance contract holders 9.1 318,495 285,543 
Less: Provision against doubtful receivables from insurance contract holders 9.2 (4,794) 
Net amount due from insurance contract holders 318,495 280,749 
Due from other insurers / reinsurers 40,443 224,243 

358,938 504,992 

This include Rs. 1.27 million (31 December 2019 Rs. 0.87 million) due from the related parties 

Provision against doubtful receivables from insurance contract holders 

Opening as at 1 January 4,794 
Less: Provision (written off) I made during the year (4,794) 4,794 
Provision as at 31 December 4,794 - 

PREPAYMENTS 

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 234,048 177,124 
Prepayments miscellaneous 10.1 7,153 5,719 

241,201 182,843 

This include Rs. 0.089 million (31 December 2019: Rs. 0.089 million) paid in advance to related party. 

CASHANDBANK 

Cash and Cash Equivalent 
- Policy and revenue stamps 100 18 

Cash at bank 
- Current accounts 8,359 5,956 
- Saving accounts 11.1 & 11.2 79,601 24,448 

88,060 30,422 

11.1 This include Rs. 0.76 million (31 December 2019: Rs. 6.05 million) from related parties. 

11.2 These carried profit range between 5.50% to 11.25% (31 December2019 (7.00% to 11.25%). 

12. SHARE CAPITAL 

12.1 Authorized Capital 

31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

(Number of Shares '000) 

50,000 50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 

31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

500,000 500,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 

25,000 25,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash 250,000 250,000 

25,000 25,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, issued as fully paid bonus shares 250,000 250,000 

50.000 50.000 500,000 500,000 

9.  

9.1 

9.2 

10.  

10.1 

11.  

12.2 



31 December2019 31 December 2020 

8,730 48,720 57,450 30,806 

8,730 30,806 48,720 57,450 33,402 2,596 

Ito 6 
months 

7t012 I3to24 
months months 

13.2 Stale Cheques -Age-Wise Breakup 25 to 36 Beyond 36 31 December 31 December 
months months 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)	  

Claims not encashed 
Payable to service provider 

647 6,099 
1,044 

146 356 1,175 
209 652 

8,423 
1,905 

10,328 

7,275 
1,044 
8,319 

Accident and Health 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Note 
14. NET INSURANCE PREMIUM 

14.1 2,360,612 2,382,505 
551,343 624,662 

(698,302) (551,343) 
2,213,653 2,455,824 

Written Gross Premium 
Add: Unearned premium reserve opening 
Less: Unearned premium reserve closing 

Premium earned 

Add: 
Less: 

805,996 
177,124 

(234,048) 
749,072 

803,193 
214,090 

(177,124) 
840,159 

Reinsurance premium ceded 
Prepaid reinsurance premium opening 
Prepaid reinsurance premium closing 
Reinsurance expense 

Less: 
Add: 

Claims Paid 
Outstanding claims including IBNR - closing 
Outstanding claims including IBNR - opening 
Claims expense 

Note Accident and Health 

Add: 
Less: 

Reinsurance and other recoveries received 
Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect of outstanding claims - closing 
Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect of outstanding claims - opening 
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 

(1,097,409) (1,493,619J Net Insurance Claims Expense 

15.1 This include Rs. 101.31 million (2019 Rs. 99.30 million) to related parties 

15.2 This include Rs. 11.74 million (2019 Rs. 12.85 million) to related parties 

12.3 Shares are held by the following: 2020 2019 
% Number of 

shares 000 
% Number of 

shares 000 

Allianz SE 49.00% 24,500 49.00% 24,500 
EFU services (Private) Limited 24.00% 11,999 24.00% 11,999 
Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Private) Limited 9.94% 4,970 
Jahangir Siddique and Sons Limited 16.74% 8,370 
Individuals 17.06% 8,531 10.26% 5,131 

100.0% 50,000 100.0% 50,000 

13. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Agents commission payable 32,952 31,180 
Accrued expenses 61,460 83,116 
Liabilities against assets subject to leases 13.1 30,806 48,720 
Payable to insurance contract holders 1,486 9,535 
Annual supervision fee payable to SECP 3,812 4,053 
Unearned Commission of Co insurance 1,520 979 
Stale cheques 13.2 10,328 8,319 
Others 2,388 1,803 

144,752 187,705_ 

13.1 This represents liability recognised against the right of use assets. The liability balance has been discounted at 7.69% - 11.34% per annum. Other 
relevant details are as follows: 

Minimum Financial Principal 
lease charges for outstanding 

payments future 

Minimum 
lease 

payments 

Financial Principal 
charges for outstanding 

future 

(Rupees in '000) 

Not later than one year 
Later than one year and nor later than five years 
Over five years 

Net Insurance Premium 

14.1 This include Rs.136.32 million (2019 Rs. 139.43 million) from related parties 

15. NET INSURANCE CLAIM EXPENSE 

1,464,581 1,615,665 

2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

15.1 (1,750,989) (2,178,924) 
15.2 (398,849) (465,990) 

465,990 339,943  
(1,683,848) (2,304,971) 

610,315 
137,665 
(161,541) 

767,640 
161,541 

(117,829) 
586,439 811,352 

33,402 2,596 



16.  NET COMMISSION (REVENUE) I EXPENSE 

Commission paid or payable 
Add: Deferred commission expense - opening 
Less: Deferred commission expense - closing 

Note Accident and Health 
2020 

(Rupees 

(120,931) 
(35,672) 
41,077 

2019 
in '000)  

(135,558) 
(31,976) 
35,672 

Net Commission (115,526) (131,862) 

Commission received or recoverable 121,301 160,610 
Add: Unearned Reinsurance Commission - opening 35,425 42,818 
Less: Unearned Reinsurance Commission - closing (35,107) (35,425) 

Commission from reinsurers 121,619 168,003 

Net Commission Revenue 6,093 36,141 

17.  INVESTMENT INCOME 

Income from equity securities - available for sale 
- Dividend income 319 

Income from debt securities - available for sale 
- Return on government securities 69,041 84,889 
- Amortization I accretion of premium I discount relative to par 1,958 1,470 

70,999 86,359 
Income from term deposits - held to maturity 
- Return of term deposit 1,298 

Net realised gains I (losses) on investments 

Available for Sale financial assets 
Realised gains on: 
- Equity securities 99 
- Government securities 26,702 

Realised losses on: 
- Equity securities (49,263) 
- Government securities (183) (84) 

26,519 (49,248) 

Total investment income 97,518 38,728 

Add : Change for Impairment in value of available for sale securities 26,002 
Less: Investment related expenses (15) (25) 
Net Investment Income 97,503 64,705 

18.  MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 

Employeebenefitcost 18.1 209,310 188,775 
Rent, taxes and electricity 6,850 8,360 
Communication 7,304 7,991 
Printing and stationery 2,654 3,024 
Travelling and business promotion 9,819 11,884 
Depreciation and amortization 36,539 37,847 
Repairs and maintenance 4,086 4,426 
Advertisement and sales promotion 385 262 
Bank Charges 1,074 349 
Information technology expenses 7,066 7,016 
Annual supervision fee SECP 3,812 4,053 
Insurance 2,714 2,463 
Data card printing expense 4,116 5,397 
Legal and professional charges 4,510 4,838 
Bad and doubtful debts - 4,794 
Other expenses 1,049 3,195 

301,288 294,674 



Accident and Health 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

18.1 Employee benefit cost 

Salaries, allowance and other benefits 
Charges for post employment benefit 

202,205 182,386 
7,105 6,389 

    

209,310 188,775 

18.2 Compensation of Directors and Executives 

Chief Executive Director Executives 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000) 

Managerial Remuneration 1,500 1,500 1,440 1,440 100,731 91,767 
Bonus 22 29 - 1,386 
Contribution Plan 4,195 3,822 
Utilities 658 651 381 317 
Medical Benefits 290 - 7,435 7,349 
Conveyance 367 538 - 6,448 7,628 
Others 551 703 1 1 1,944 1,204 

Total 3,076 3,704 1,441 1,470 121,134 113,473 

Number of Persons 1 1 1 1 41 39 

19. OTHER EXPENSES Note Accident and Health 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Insurance association fees 
Membership fees 
Auditors' remuneration 

2,000 1,750 
535 386 

19.1 3,155 2,933 

  

5,690 5,069 

19.1 Auditors' remuneration 

    

Auditfee 1,327 1,221 
Interim review 377 343 
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 269 458 
Tax services 699 462 
Out-of-pocket expenses 483 449 

3,155	 2,933  

20. OTHER INCOME 

Return on bank balances 
Gain on disposal of tangible operating assets 
Service income 
Return on loans to employees 
Other income  

20.1 9,436 11,911 
5.2 1,551 3,404 

2,523 6,190 
1,106 626 

49 55 
14,665 22,186 

20.1 This include Rs. 2.21 million (2019 Rs. 3.79 million) from related parties 



WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS - Operator's Fund 

Profit & Loss Account 

Note 
Accident and Health 

2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

Wakala fee 34,997 29,485 
Management expenses (17,097) (14410) 
Net commission expenses (11,151) (9,514) 
General and administrative expenses (5,839) (4,833) 
Other income 90 136 
Investment income 3,746 4,390 
Modarib's share of PTF investment income 533 1,249 
Profit on saving accounts 386 332 
Investment related expense (3) (3) 
Profit before tax for the year 5,662 6832 

31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

Assets (Rupees in '000)  

Property and equipment 241 407 
Investments in term deposits receipts 55,000 48,000 
Loans and other receivables 2 - 
Qard-e-hasna - receivable 21.4 4,000 7,500 
Deferred taxation 70 43 
Receivable from PTF / OPF 8,986 10,139 
Accrued investment income 552 466 
Taxation - payment less provision 503 
Deferred commission expense 989 1,955 
Cash and bank 2,283 1,833 
Total Assets 72,123 70,846 

31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

Liabilities (Rupees in '000)  

Unearned wakala fee 6,012 10,068 
Other creditors and accruals 4,411 3,663 
Taxation - provision less payments 2,235 - 
Accrued expenses 908 600 
Payable to OPF / PTF 454 427 
Total Liabilities 14,020 14,758 

Qard-e-Hasna receivable 

Opening Balance of Qard-e-Hasna 7,500 2,500 
Qard-e-Hasna transferred from OPF during the year 1,500 5,000 
Qard-e-Hasna returned by PTF during the year (5,000) - 
Closing Balance of Qard-e-Hasna 4,000 7,500 

21.5 The ability of Participants' Takaful Fund to repay Qard-e-Hasna to the Operator's Fund was tested for impairment 
as required under regulation 11(2) to the General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019, by preparing financial 
projections for five years. Based on the financial projections prepared by the management, the balance is expected 
to be paid by the end of 2022, 

As required under regulation 11(2) to the General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019, the Operator performed 
impairment testing of Qard-e-Hasna balance of Rs. 4 million, given by Participant's Takaful Fund (PTF) to it, as at 
31 December 2020. The calculation of recoverable amount for the purpose of impairment testing was based on 
value in use, estimated using discounted cash flows. Key assumptions used were as follows: 

21. 

21.1 

21.2 

21.3 

21.4 



Assumptions How Determined 
Budgeted Cash flows Budgeted Earnings before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDA) and estimated cash flows were based on 

past experience duly adjusted for changes in working capital. 
Pre-Tax Risk Adjusted Discount 
Rate 

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate of 16.9% was used in the calculation. This discount rate represents cost of 
capital determined using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) approach based on risk free rate of return for 
ten year Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) issued by the Government of Pakistan adjusted for risk premium 
and systematic risks. 

Long Term Growth Rate Discounted cash flow projections for five years have been used and long term growth rate of 5% in perpetuity 
has been assumed on the basis of nominal Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate for the country of 
operations. 

As part of impairment testing, the management has assured reasonably that impact of possible changes in any of the aforementioned key 
assumptions would not cause the carrying value of Qard-e-Hasna to exceed its recoverable amount. 

TAXATION 
Note 

For the year 

Accident and Health 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

- Current 22.1 34,717 26,225 
- Deferred 22.2 (3,451) (739) 

31,266 25,486 

Current tax includes Rs. 3.67 million charge on taxable income of Operator's Fund (OPF) 

Deferred tax income mentioned above includes Rs. 0.007 million relating to Operator's Fund (OPF). 

Relationship between tax expenses and accounting Profit / (loss) 

Profit! (Loss) for the year before taxation 179,391 (54,495) 

Applicable tax rate 29% 29% 

Tax amount at applicable rate 52,023 (15,804) 

Tax effects of amounts that may not be allowable (1,438) (4,254) 

Tax effect of loss in a previous year (19,319) 19,319 

Tax amount taxed at a minimum tax rate u/s 113 of the Ordinance - 26,225 
31,266 25,486 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Contingencies 

Income tax assessments 

22.  

23.  

23.1 

23.1.1 

23.1.1.1 The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to tax year 2007. Subsequent returns up to tax year 2020 have been filed 
under self-assessment scheme 

23.1.1.2 The Company's appeal relating to assessment year 2001-2002 against the order of Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) disallowed management 
expenses to the extent of Rs. 14.2 million, decided by the High Court of Sindh and directions to ITAT and have simultaneously to the Chairman of 
ITAT to constitute full I large bench to adjudicate the issue of excess management expenses. The full I large bench of ITAT was formed and the 
matter adjourned by the Full bench ITAT in favour of the Department. However, The Company not challenged decision of ITAT full bench in its 
legal advisor's opinion that there is no financial implication involve. 

23.1.1.3 The Company has filed an appeal with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in respect of tax year 2008 against the order of CIR-Appeals for disallowed 
adjustment of a minimum tax of Rs. 3.78 million. Another order of ACIR received on same ground, the Company filed appeal against the ACIR 
order on ground that since the appeal against order of CIR(A) is still pending before the ATIR, the remand back proceedings may not be finalized. 

23.1.1.4 The tax department has filed Civil appeals for the tax years 2009 and 2010 before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, against the decision 
of the Honorable High Court of Sindh in respect of disallowed proration of expenses and if the appeals are decided against the Company, the 
additional tax liability is estimated to be Rs. 2.98 million. 

23.1.1.5 The Company has filed appeals with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal in respect of tax years 2008 and 2013 for disallowance of provision for IBNR of 
Rs. 20.91 million for Tax year 2008 and Rs. 2.82 million for Tax year 2013. If appeals are decided against the Company, a tax liability Rs. 8.07 
million would be payable by the Company. 

23.1.1.6 The tax department has amended the tax assessment of the Company for the tax years 2009 to 2013 by taxing the dividend income on full 
corporate tax rate as against the reduced tax rates applied by the Company. These appeals are pending with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
(hAT). The additional tax impact of the said appeals is estimated to be Rs. 9.62 million. 

23.1.1.7 The Tax department has filed appeals before the Income Appellate Tribunal against the decision of the Commission I.R.- Appeals, disallowing the 
taxing of Dividend Income on full corporate tax rate for the tax year 2014 and 2015 and allowed WWF for the tax year 2014. The additional tax 
impact of the said appeals is estimated to be Rs. 6.47 million. 

23.1.1.8 The Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal against the decision of the Commissioner l.R — Appeals, disallowing 
the levy of SWWF and The Tax department has filed an appeal before the ITAT against the dR-Appeals allowed taxing the Dividend Income on 
normal tax rate for tax year 2016. The additional tax impact of the said appeals are estimated to be Rs. 4.37 million. 

23.1.1.9 The Company has filed an appeal with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) related to Tax year 2017 in respect of fair market value confirmed by 
the CIR (A) for disposal of fixed assets by the Company. Furthermore the tax department also has filed appeal with ITAT against the decision of 
the Commissioner-Appeals related to commission expense and provision for compensated absence allowed in favour of the Company. The 
additional tax impact of the said appeals is estimated to Rs. 0.52 million. 

No additional provision has been made for the above matters in these financial statements as the management, based on the tax advisor's opinion, 
is confident that the decisions will be in favor of the Company. 

22.1 

22.2 

22.3 



EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 2020 2019 

Profit / (Loss) for the year (Rupees in '000) 148,125 (79,981) 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number in '000) 50,000 50,000 
Earnings / (Loss) per share (Rupees) 2.96 (1.60) 

24.2 Deferred tax income of Rs. 3.42 million has been recorded in profit and loss account. 

24.3 Deffered tax income of Rs. 1.58 million has been recorded in the other comprehensive income. 

25. 

23.1.2 Provincial sales tax on health insurance 

23.1.2.1 Under the Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011, Sindh sales tax (SST) is payable on premium on corporate health insurance policies written in 
the province of Sindh. However, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) vide its notification SRB-3-4/5/2019 dated 8 May 2019 has 
exempted SST for the period from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. This exemption has been further extended by SRB vide its 
notification SRB-3 -4/16/2019 dated 27 June 2019 till 30 June 2020. SRB further extended SST exemption vide its notification SRB-3-
4/14/2020 dated 22 June 2020 till 30 June 2021. 

23.1.2.2 With effect from November 1, 2018, the Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA), withdrew the exemption on health insurance. However, 
PRA vide its notification SO(Tax) 1-110/2020 (Covid-19) dated 2 April 2020 exempted PST on health insurance for the period from 
April 2 2020 till 30 June 2020. 

This being a collective issue of the industry, the Insurance Association of Pakistan (lAP) had taken up the matter with the Punjab 
Revenue Authority (PRA) for the restoration of the exemptions that were withdrawn. The management of the Company sought a legal 
opinion from their legal advisors, who confirmed the Company's contention that health insurance is not a service, but infact, an 
underwriter's promise to pay to its policyholders in the future, as is also clearly defined in the definition of the term "insurance" under 
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. Such contention of the Company and the insurance industry has also been upheld in the superior 
courts of foreign jurisdiction, where, in a majority of jurisdictions it has been widely held that insurance is not a service. 

Based on the above contentions, the Company and other insurance companies have challenged the levy of Punjab Sales Tax (PST) 
on health insurance in the Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) in the month of September 2019. The Honorable LHC, in their order 
dated 3 October 2019, has granted a stay to the Company and all petitioners against any coercive measures for recovery by the PRA. 
The hearing of the petition is currently in progress. In view of the pending adjudication, the Company, has not charged PST to its 
clients, nor recognized the contingent amount of PST liability in these financial statements as the management is confident that the 
final outcome will be in favor of the Company. 

In view of the above, the Company is not charging sales tax on the policies written in the province of Punjab, nor has recognized the 
liability for PST in financial statements. The amount involved as of 31 December 2020, except for the exempt period, amounts to Rs. 
279.89 million. 

There are no commitments as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil). 

DEFERRED TAXATION 2020 2019 
Note (Rupees in '000)  

Deferred debits arising in respect of: 
Accelerated accounting depreciation 6,907 3,142 
Differences against right of use assets - net (593) (1,643) 
Provision against doubtful receivables 539 1,930 

24.2 6,853 3,429 
Deferred credits arising in respect of: 
Deficit / (Surplus) on revaluation of available for sale securities 24.3 184 (1,402) 
Deferred tax asset 7,037 2,027 

24.1 Deferred tax asset of Rs. 16.39 million (2019: Rs. 16.39 million) on deductible temporary differences of Rs. 56.52 million (2019: Rs. 
56.52 million) representing provision against investments have not been recorded by the Company in view of the uncertainty of its 
realization. 

23.2 

24. 

26. 

25.1 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instrument which would have an 
impact on earnings / (loss) per share when exercised. 

MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS - available for sale Total 
(Rupees in '000) 

Balance as of 1 January 2019 695,971 

Additions 3,720,968 
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (3,871,675) 
Unrealized gain on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 21,441 
Amortization / accretion of premium / discount relative to par 1,470 
Impairment reversal 26,002 
Balance as of 31 December2019 594,177 

Additions 1,573,808 
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (1,349,657) 
Unrealized loss on revaluation of available-for-sale investments (5,470) 
Amortization / accretion of premium / discount relative to par 1,958 
Impairment reversal - 
Balance as of 31 December 2020 814,816 



27. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS UNITS RELATED RISKS 

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises these risks and the 
way the Company manages them. 

27.1 Insurance risk management 

Insurance risk 

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the 
resulting claim. By very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risk that the 
Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This 
could occur because the frequency or severity of claims is greater than estimated. Insurance events are random, and the actual 
number and amount of claims will vary from year to year from the level established. 

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected 
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. 

The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the insurance risks accepted and to achieve a 
sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. 

(a) Frequency and severity of claims 

The Company undertakes health insurance contracts. The insurance risk arising from these contracts is concentrated in the 
territories in which the Company operates. 

The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For 
accident and health risk, multiple policy holders in the same geographical location which could be affected by a single event or 
claims incident. 

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive 
claims handling. 

- The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of amount of risk and 
industry. The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles and reject 
fraudulent claims. 

The claims payments are limited to the extent of assigned limit under the insurance contract, on occurrence of the insured 
event. 

- The Company has entered into reinsurance cover / arrangements, with local reinsurer having good credit rating by 
reputable rating agencies, to reduce its exposure to risks and resulting claims. The effect of such reinsurance 
arrangements is that the Company recovers the share of claims from reinsurers thereby reducing its exposure to risk. 

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted with (SECP) on an annual 
basis. 

The Company has claims department dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims incurred whether reported or 
not. This department investigates and settle claims based on case manager's report I assessment. The unsettled claims 
are reviewed individually at regular intervals and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, 
contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements of 
claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments. 

(b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments 

Claims reported and otherwise are analysed separately. The shorter settlement period for claims allows the Company to 
achieve a higher degree of certainty about the estimated cost of claims including IBNR. 

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, reinsurance and other recoveries. The 
Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, 
given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original 
liability established. The liability comprises amount in relations to unpaid reported claims, IBNR, expected claims settlement 
costs and a provision for unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period. 



Liability in respect of outstanding claims is based on the best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed. In calculating the 
estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company estimation techniques are a combination of loss 
development and ultimate loss ratio method. 

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers any information available from case 
manager's assessment and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Claims are 
assessed on a case-by-case basis separately. 

(c) Process used to decide on assumptions 

The risks associated with insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate quantitative 
sensitivity analysis. This exposure is geographically concentrated in Pakistan only. 

The Company uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and market data to measure its related claims liabilities. Internal 
data is derived mostly from the Company's monthly claims reports, case manager's report for particular claim and screening of the 
actual insurance contracts carried out to derive data for the contracts held. The Company reviews the individual contracts and in 
particular the industries in which the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This information is used 
to develop related provision for outstanding claims (both reported and non-reported). 

The choice of selected results depends on an assessment of the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical 
developments. Through this analysis, the Company determines the need for an IBNR or an unexpired risk liability to be held at 
each reporting date. 

(d) Changes in assumptions 

The Company did not change its assumptions during the year for the insurance contracts as disclosed in (b) and (c) above. 

(e) Sensitivity analysis 

The analysis of exposure described in paragraph (c) above is also used to test the sensitivity of the selected assumptions to 
changes in the key underlying factors. Assumptions of different levels have been used to assess the relative severity of 
subsidence claims given past experience. 

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which complicate quantitative 
sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims development experience. 
This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected loss ratios. The Company considers 
that the liability for insurance claims recognised in the balance sheet is adequate. However, actual experience will differ from the 
expected outcome. 

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market conditions 
on unexpired risks. However, results of sensitivity testing assuming 10% change in the claim incidence net of recoveries showing 
effect on underwriting results and equity is set out below: 

Average claim cost (Loss) I Profit before tax Shareholders' equity 

 

  

2020 2019 2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

 

   

Impact of change in claims by +10% 
Accident and health (109,741) (149,362) (77,916) (106,047) 

Impact of change in claims by -10% 
Accident and health 109,741 149,362  77,916 106,047 

Concentration of insurance risk 

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular type of policyholder, within a 
geographical location or types of commercial business. The Company is not subject to significant concentration of insurance risk as 
for each policy holder, risk is further restricted by individual sub limits. 

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarised below by reference to liabilities: 

Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net 

  

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

 

       

(Rupees in '000) 

    

           

Accident and Health 166,130,950 186,219,049 57,393,572 64,049,743 108,737,378 122,169,306 

              

Claims development tables 

For the segment of accident and health, the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claim payments is usually resolved within a 
year Further, claims with significant uncertainties are not outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and for this reason separate disclosure 
of such claims have not been given. 



27.2 Financial risk management 

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. The risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the board of directors. The 
Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 
- Market risk 

27.2.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is defined as the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by 
undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness 
of counterparties. 

27.2.1.1 Exposure to credit risk 

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the investments (except for investment in government securities),premium 
receivable from insurance contract holder, coinsurer and reinsurer, bank balance and loan to employees. The Company's credit 
exposure in respect of investments is in term finance certificates and quoted equity securities. 

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure, as specified below: 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Bank balance 87,960 30,404 
Loans to key management personal 22,865 5,215 
Loans to employees 1,900 1,516 
Investments - other than Government Securities 5,837 2,043 
Due from insurance contract holders 318,495 285,543 
Amount due from other insurers I reinsurers 40,443 224,243 
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 137,665 161,541 
Deposits 12,619 11,817 
Other receivables 13,972 24,504 
Total assets - Operator's Fund of Window Takaful Operations 70,823 67,938 

641,756 746,826 

Investments of Rs. 808.97 million in government securities are not considered to carry credit risk. 

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows: 

Rating 2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

MA 67,876 11,787 
12,896 7,028 

AA 5,170 2,032 
762 6,053 
474 2,448 

A 320 650 
A- 137 64 
BBB- 325 342 

87,960 30,404 
Concentration of credit risk 

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change 
in economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. Sector-wise 
analysis of premium due but unpaid at the reporting date was: 

2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in '000) % 

Local Authority 60,045 17% 1,918 0% 
Textile 53,611 15% 51,183 10% 
Technology and Communication 34,753 10% 61,887 12% 
Construction & Engineering 34,306 10% 24,884 5% 
Pharmaceuticals 29,783 8% 36,558 7% 
Education 27,383 8% 30,158 6% 
Financial Services 23,061 6% 34,248 7% 
Foods and Beverages 19,148 5% 19,097 4% 
Distribution and Logistics Services 18,180 5% 7,699 2% 
Health Services 7,327 2% 2,767 1% 
Miscellaneous 4,963 1% 6,539 1% 
Other Trading 3,206 1% 1,522 0% 
Non Government Organizations 2,729 1% 2,289 0% 

318,495 89% 280,749 55% 
Reinsurance company (PRCL) 40,443 11% 224,243 44% 

358,938 100% 504,992 99% 



The management monitors exposure to credit risk on premium recoverable from customers through regular review and prudent 
estimates of provision for doubtful debts. As at 31 December 2020, due from insurance contract holders includes amount receivable 
within one year and above one year amounting to Rs. 316.98 million (2019: Rs. 284.87 million) and Rs. 1.51 million (2019: Rs. 0.67 
million) respectively. 

Amount due from other insurers I reinsurers reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 

The Company enters into re-insurance / co-insurance arrangements with re-insurer / other insurers having sound credit ratings 
accorded by reputed credit rating agencies. The Company has made re-insurance arrangement with Pakistan Reinsurance Company 
Limited. 

27.2.2 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty 
in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company ensures 
that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational requirements. The Company also manages this risk by investing 
in deposit accounts that can be readily encashed. Financial liabilities includes (a) Provision for outstanding claims (b) Amount due to 
other insurers I reinsurers (c) Accrued expenses (d) Other payables. 

Following are the maturities of financial liabilities: 
2020 

 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash 
flows 

Six months or 
less 

Six to twelve One to five 
months years 

   

(Rupees in '000) 

 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

   

Provision for outstanding claims including 
IBNR 

Liabilities against assets subject to leases 
Insurance / reinsurance payables 
Accrued expenses 
Other payables 
Total liabilities of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund 

398,849 
30,806 
13,324 
61,460 
19,534 

11,785 

(398,849) 
(30,806) 
(13,324) 
(61,460) 
(19,534) 

(11,785) 

(398,849) 
(1,243) 

(13,324) 
(61,460) 
(19,534) 

(11,785) 

(14,725) (14,838) 

535,758 (535,758) (506,195) (14,725) (14,838) 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Provision for outstanding claims including 

2019 
Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash 
flows 

Six months or Six to twelve 
less months 

(Rupees in '000)  

One to five 
years 

IBNR 465,990 (465,990) (465,990) 
Liabilities against assets subject to leases 48,720 (48720) - (48,720) 
Insurance I reinsurance payables 3,084 (3,084) (3,084) 
Accrued expenses 83,116 (83,116) (83,116) 
Other payables 24,689 (24,689) (24,689) 
Total liabilities of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund 14,758 (14,758) (14,758) 
640,357 (640,357) (591,637) (48,720) 

27.2.3 Market risk 

Market risk is defined as the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. All transactions are carried in 
Pak Rupees therefore, the Company is not exposed to currency risk. However, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk and other 
price risk. 



27.2.3.1 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. Major part of the interest rate exposure arises from balances held in profit and loss sharing accounts with reputable 
banks. 

The Company's exposure to mark-up rate risk, based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date, as at 31 December 2020 is 
as follows: 

Financial assets 

2020 
Interest! mark-up bearing - Not Exposed 

to interest Risk 

(Rupees in 000)  

Total 
Maturity 
upto one 

year 

Maturity Sub total 
after one 

year 

Cash and bank deposits 79,601 - 79,601 8,459 88,060 
Loan to employees and key management personal 6,918 17,847 24,765 24,765 
Investments 114,654 694,325 808,979 5,837 814,816 
Amount due from insurance contract holders - - - 318,495 318,495 
Amounts due from other insurers I reinsurers - - - 40,443 40,443 
Accrued investment income - - - 19,648 19,648 
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims - - 137,665 137,665 
Deposits - 12,619 12,619 
Other receivables - - 38,737 38,737 
Total assets of Window Takaful - 

Operations - Operator's Fund 57,278 57,278 9,545 66,823 
258,451 712,172 970,623 591,448 1,562,071 

Financial liabilities 
Provision for outstanding claims 398,849 398,849 
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers - - 13,324 13,324 
Accrued expenses - 61,460 61,460 
Other payables - - 19,534 19,534 
Liabilities against assets subject to leases 15,968 14,838 - 30,806 30,806 
Total liabilities of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund - 5,773 5,773 
15,968 14,838 529,746 529,746 

On balance sheet gap 242,483 697,334 970,623 61,702 1,032,325 

2019 
Interest / mark-up bearing Not Exposed to 

interest Risk 

Total 

Maturity 
upto one 

year 

Maturity 
after one 

year Sub total 
(Rupees in '000) 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank deposits 24,448 24,448 5,974 30,422 
Loan to employees key management personal 1,777 4,954 6,731 6,731 
Investments 245,585 346,549 592,134 2,043 594,177 
Amount due from insurance contract holders 285,543 285,543 
Amounts due from other insurers I reinsurers - 224,243 224,243 
Accrued investment income 6,189 6,189 
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims - 161,541 161,541 
Deposits 11,817 11,817 
Other receivables 31,235 31,235 
Total assets of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund 49,832 49,832 10,606 60,438 
321,642 351,503 673,145 739,191 1,412,336 

Financial liabilities 
Provision for outstanding claims 465,990 465,990 
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 3,084 3,084 
Accrued expenses 83,116 83,116 
Other payables 24,689 24,689 
Liabilities against assets subject to leases 48,720 48,720 48,720 
Total liabilities of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund - 4,690 4,690 
48,720 630,289 630,289 

On balance sheet gap 272,922 351,503 673,145 108,902 782,047 



At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instrument is: 

Interest rate (in %) Carrying value 

Fixed rate instruments 

2020 2019 2020 2019 
---(Rupees in '000) -- 

- Government securities (7.11% to 14.02%) (11.55% to 14.02%) 808,979 592,134 
- Loans to key management (8.23% to 8.50%) (7.25% to 14.80%) 22,865 5,215 
- Loans to employees (8.28% to 9.34%) (12.08% to 14.82%) 1,900 1,516 

Variable rate instruments 
- PLS / Savings accounts (5.50% to 11.25%) (7.00% to 11 .25%) 79,601 24,448 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a 
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account and equity of the 
Company. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points as at 31 December 2020 would not have had a material impact on the profit and 
equity of the company. 

27.2.3.2 Equity price risk 

Equity price risk is defined as the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as a result of changes in 
the levels of PSX 100 Index and the value of individual shares. The equity price risk exposure arises from the 
Company's investments in equity securities and units of mutual funds. This arises from investments held by the 
Company for which prices in the future are uncertain, The Company policy is to manage price risk through 
diversification and selection of securities within specified limits set by internal risk management guidelines. 

The Management monitors the fluctuations of prices of equity securities on regular basis. The Company also 
has necessary skills for monitoring and managing the equity portfolio in line with fluctuations of the market. 

Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an 
investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of 
a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold. The Company has no 
significant concentration of price risk in the equity portfolio. 

Sensitivity analysis 

The paragraph below summarizes Company's equity price risk as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 and shows 
the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The 
selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. 
Indeed, results could be worse because of the nature of equity markets in Company's equity investment 
portfolio. 

Sensitivity analysis of equity investment as at the reporting date is as follows: 

For available for sale equity investments, in case of 10% decrease in equity prices at the reporting date, the 
profit and equity would have been lower by Rs. 0.58 million (2019: Rs. 0.20 million). However, an increase of 
10% in equity prices at the reporting date, the profit and equity would have been higher by Rs. 0.58 million 
(2019: Rs. 0.20 million) Company in accordance with the Insurance Rules, 2017. 



27.3 Fair value of financial instruments 

IFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

- Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 

observable. 
- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

Following are the assets where fair value is only disclosed and is different from their carrying value: 

27.3.1 On balance sheet 31 December2020 

  

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Investments 

Available-for- 

sale 

Loans and 

receivables 

Other Total 

financial 

liabilities 

(Rupees in 000)  

Level I Level 2 Total 

Quoted equity securities 5,837 5,837 5,837 5,837 

Government securities 808,979 808,979 808,979 808,979 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

Loans and other receivables* 71,004 71,004 

Insurance / reinsurance receivables* 358,938 358,938 

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims* 137,665 137,665 
Cash and bank* 88,060 88,060 
Total assets of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund* 55,000 11,269 66,269 55,000 55,000 

869,816 666,936 1,536,752 60,837 808,979 869,816 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Outstanding claims including IBNR* (398,849) (398,849) 

Insurance / reinsurance payables* (13,324) (13,324) 

Other creditors and accruals* (144,752) (144,752) 
Total liabilities of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund* (5,773) (5,773 

869,816 666,936 (562,698) 974,054 60,837 808,979 869,816 

31 December2019 

Available-for- 

sale 

Loans and 

receivables 

Other financial 

liabilities 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Total 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Investments 

(Rupees in '000)  

Quoted equity securities 2,043 2,043 2,043 2,043 

Government securities 592,134 592,134 592,134 592,134 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

Loans and other receivables* 49,241 49,241 

Insurance I reinsurance receivables* 504,992 504,992 

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims* 161,541 161,541 

Cash and bank* 30,422 30,422 

Total assets of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund 48,000 11,972 59,972 48,000 48,000 

642,177 758,168 1,400,345 50,043 592,134 642,177 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Outstanding claims including IBNR* (465,990) (465,990) 

Insurance / reirtsurance payables* (3,084) (3,084) 

Other creditors and accruals* (187,705) (187,705) 

Total liabilities of Window Takaful 

Operations - Operator's Fund (4,690) (4,690) 

642,177 758,168 (661,469) 738,876 50,043 592,134 642,177 

* The Company has not disclosed the fair value of these items because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. 



28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern meet 
the regulatory solvency and paid up capital requirements so that the Company can continue to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of 
dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares. 

Currently the Company has a paid up capital of Rs. 500 million against the minimum required capital of Rs. 500 million set by 
the SECP for the year ended 31 December 2020. 

In addition, the Company is also required to maintain minimum solvency in accordance with the rules and regulations set by 
the SECP which are fully met by the Company. 

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related parties comprise of directors, major share holders, key management personnel, associated companies, entities with 
common directors and an employee retirement benefit fund (provident fund). Transactions for compensation to key 
management personnel are on the basis of their employment terms. Contribution to provident fund is in accordance with the 
service rule. Dividend income is recorded at the amount these are declared by the investee company. Other transaction are 
at agreed basis. The transactions and balances with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed else where 
in these financial statements, are as follows: 

2020 2019 
29.1 Associated companies (Rupees in '000)  

Premium received 136,199 141,499 

Premium paid 3,904 3,499 

Premium written 136,315 139,427 

Claims received 133 70 

Claims paid 101,306 99,297 

Commission paid 15,278 19,793 

Reimbursement of expenses 67 

Dividend paid 50,000 

Premium refund 8,720 1,372 

Experience refund settled 9,958 662 

Interest income 2,212 3,786 

Miscellaneous payment 105 

Annual fee and levy 1,525 1,794 

Key management personnel 

Compensation 125,651 118,648 

Retirement benefit fund 

Contribution to the provident fund 7,105 6,389 

29.2 Balances 

Associated companies 
Premium due but unpaid 1,273 870 
Premium received in advance 369 209 
Outstanding insurance claims 11,739 12,852 
Bank balance 762 6,053 
Investment - net of impairment 5,837 2,043 
Levy fees paid in advance 1,000 
Premium Paid in Advance 89 89 

Key management personnel 
Due from key management personnel - loan unsecured, considered good 22,865 5,215 

    







KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
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Karachi 75530 Pakistan 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited — Window Takaful 
Operations 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Allianz EFU Health Insurance 
Limited — Window Takaful Operations (the "Operations"), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, profit and loss account, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and the cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of 
the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, the statement 
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and the cash flow 
statement together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by 
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Operations' affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the profit, total comprehensive 
income, the changes in funds and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs) 
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Operations in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the 
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

KFMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG global organization 
ot independent member fimis affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. 
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Emphasis of matter 

We draw attention to note 13.1.1.2 to the financial statements, which describes that 

the Operator has challenged the scope and applicability of provincial sales tax on 
services on the contribution from health takaful business in a provincial High Court. 

Our opnion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises of the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Operations' ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Operations or to cease operations, or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Operations' financial reporting 

process. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also; 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Operations' internal 
control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Operations' ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Operations to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the 
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), 

b) the statement of financial position, profit and loss account the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow 
statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with 
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), and are in 

agreement with the books of account; 

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year 

were for the purpose of the Operations' business; and 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 

of 1980) 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 

Amyn Pirani. 

Date: 12 March 2021 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Karachi 
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 نحمدہ و نصلی علٰی رسولہ الکر یم

Annual Shariah Review Report 

for the year ended 2020 

 

Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited started its Window Takaful Operations in 2017. By the grace of 
Allah, the year under review was the fourth successful year of Health Takaful in Allianz EFU Health 
Insurance Limited under its Window Takaful Operations. In this year, the Management, Sales Team 
and Board of Directors demonstrated their sincere efforts for the promotion of Takaful Contracts and 
underwritten sound numbers in Takaful. 
 
 

Progress of the Year 2020: 

During this year; Allianz EFU-WTO has achieved significant successes, details of which are as follow: 

 

1. Branches fully participated in the Takaful segment from different locations of the Country and by 
their efforts good numbers of Takaful contracts were recorded in the Head office. 
 

2. Conducting Training and Development is an imperative for understanding the principles of Takaful 
and its practical outline. For this purpose Allianz EFU –WTO fulfilled its responsibility and arranged 
classroom training sessions for Takaful; from Head Office to the Distribution (Sales) force level working 
in their respective fields and I personally felt that participants attended those trainings gained 
significantly from these training sessions. I hope Allianz EFU -WTO will continue this practice in the 
future. 
 

3. Allianz EFU-WTO continued to record all the policies on a dedicated Takaful IT system which 
manages all operational aspects of Window Takaful Operations. 
 

4. Allianz EFU -WTO signed corporate agency agreements with couple of corporate agents in order to 
increase the distribution of takaful products. 
 

5.  Allianz EFU –WTO made couple of amendments in the investment policy pertaining to its Window 
Takaful Operations in order to invest the funds from the PTF in Shariah Compliant Investments  in 
order to gain maximum returns. Amended investment policy has been reviewed and approved by me. 
 

6.  Allianz EFU being the Modarib took self-initiative by reducing its share investment profit from 70:30 
to 85:15 during the year and signed an addendum with Allianz EFU –WTO being the Rabbul Maal, in 
order to pass on the maximum benefit to the PTF. 
 
7. For re-takaful arrangement, Allianz EFU–WTO has approached Pakistan Re-Insurance Company 
Limited – Window Re-Takaful Operations after having my consent and signed off to get better terms 
of re-takaful arrangements for Allianz EFU – WTO 
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Shariah Compliance: 

As Shariah Advisor of Allianz EFU-WTO and based on my review; I confirm that: 

 
 I have carefully reviewed all the product documents of Allianz EFU-WTO including Waqf Deed, 

PTF Policies, Takaful Policies and Brochures etc. and Alhamdulillah I have found them in 
accordance with Shariah Principles. Further, I confirm that the Takaful Policies issued during the 
year under review are in accordance with the guidelines of Shariah. Allianz EFU-WTO, before 
launching   any   Takaful  Product,  take  guidance  and  advice  regarding  Shariah  from  the 
undersigned and always develop the Takaful Products in accordance with the guidelines 
provided by me as Shariah Advisor. 

 
 Segregation of Window Takaful Operations is the essential part of valid Takaful contracts. I am 

pleased to state that Allianz EFU -WTO has realized criticalities of this issue and from the day 
one, Alhamdulillah, all the Takaful Funds, Investments, Bank Accounts, Systems and other 
related matters are kept separate from its conventional insurance business, as per requirement 
of Shariah. 

 
While concluding; I state that the Shariah principles have been followed in the practical 
implementation of Allianz EFU-WTO. I am grateful to the Board of Directors of Allianz EFU, 
Management, Head of Window Takaful Operations, Branch Heads and all relevant departments who 
cooperated with me and provided me every possible support to ensure Shariah Compliance in our 
Takaful practices. 

 

In the end; I pray to Allah Almighty to grant us success and help us at every step, keep us away from 
every hindrance and difficulty, and give financial success to Allianz EFU Window Takaful Operations. 

                                      
 
 
Mufti Muhammad Ibrahim Essa  
Shariah Advisor, 
Allianz EFU Health Insurance Ltd- 
Window Takaful Operations 
15 February, 2021 
          

















Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited - Window Takaful Operations 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited ('the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 May 2000 as a Public 
Limited Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Acts, 2017) and has its registered 
office at D-136, Block - 4, K.D.A. Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi. The principal activity of the Allianz EFU Health 
Insurance Limited is to sell Health Insurance cover in Pakistan. 

Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited (the Operator) was authorized to undertake Window Takaful Operations (WTO) 
on 14 March 2017 by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 to 
carry on General Window Takaful Operations in Pakistan. 

The Operator transferred statutory fund of Rs. 50 million in a separate bank account for the window takaful operations 
as per the requirement of circular 8 of 2014. Thereafter, the Operator has formed a Waqf for Participants' Fund by 
executing the Waqf deed by investing a cede money of Rs. 0.5 Million. The cede money is required to be invested in 
Shariah compliant investments and any profit thereon can be utilized only to pay benefits to participants or defray PTF 
expenses. Waqf Deed governs the relationship of Operator and participants for management of takaful operations, 
investments of participants' funds and investment of the Operator's funds approved by the shariah advisor of the 
Operator. The Operator commenced activities of Window Takaful Operations on 1 April 2017. 

1.2 A novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was classified as a pandemic by the world health organization on 11 March 
2020, impacting countries globally including Pakistan. Government of Pakistan has taken certain measures to reduce 
the spread of the COVID-19 including Iockdown of businesses, suspension of flight operations, intercity movements, 
cancellation of major events etc. These measures have resulted in an overall economic slowdown, disruptions to 
various businesses. However, currently, the potential impacts from COVID-19 remain uncertain, including, among other 
things, on economic conditions, businesses and consumers. As per the initial assessment by the management, the 
Operator is not likely to have an impact as the sale of health / takaful cover in Pakistan was on going even during the 
period in which business activities were suspended by government of Pakistan. Furthermore, the management has 
also made assessment of future profitability projection and as per the projections the Window Takaful Operations 
continues to earn profit and remain solvent. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of 
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Rules, 2017, Takaful 
Rules 2012 and General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives 
of the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Rules, 2017, Takaful Rules, 2012 and General 
Takaful Accounting Regulation 2019 shall prevail. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the format issued by the SECP through the General 
Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019, vide SRO 1416(1)/2019 dated 20 November 2019. 

These financial statements reflect the financial position and results of operations of both the Operator's Fund (OPF) 
and Participant Takaful Fund (PTF) in a manner that the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of OPF and PTF 
remain separately identifiable. 

2.1 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the available-for-sale 
investments that has been measured at fair values. 

2.2 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Operator's functional and presentation 
currency. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand. 



2.3 New or amendments I interpretations to existing Standards, Interpretation and Forthcoming Requirements 

2.3.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
that are effective in the current year 

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Operator's 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any 
significant effect on the operations of Operator and therefore not stated in these financial statements except for 
adoption of General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019 as mentioned in note 3.1. 

2.3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
that are not effective in current year 

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)—the International Accounting Standards Board (the 
Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for 
rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with earlier 
application permitted. Under the standard's previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are 
lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications. This generally 
involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the 
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first time in their 
financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical 
expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead 
are permitted to account for them as if they were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the 
practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria 
are met: 

The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and 
- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease. 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, lAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 is 
applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted. The 
amendments introduce a practical expedient to account for modifications of financial assets or financial liabilities if a 
change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an 'economically equivalent' basis. In these cases, changes 
will be accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 for 
lessees when accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow a series of 
exemptions from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly affected by the 
interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier application permitted. Hedging 
relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain 
conditions are met. 

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to lAS 37) effective for the annual period beginning 
on or after 1 January 2022 amends lAS I by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of 
fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity 
is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of 
the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of 
comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect 
of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other 
component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application. 

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020: 

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022: 

IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the 
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf, 
when it applies the '10 per cent' test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial 
liability. 

IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying lFRS 16 by excluding the 
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve 
any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 

lAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of lAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash 
flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique. 



Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to lAS 16) effective for the annual 
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while bringing 
an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in 
the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc. are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with 
applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of lAS 2. 
The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall 
apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the 
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or 
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the 
amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment 
to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that 
earliest period presented. 

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual Framework, 
issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14,21,22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A 
to IFRS 3. An entity shall apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or 
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is 
permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to 
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018. 

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to lAS 1) effective for the annual period beginning 
on or after 1 January 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is 
classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the 
assessment of the entity's right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with lAS 8. 

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and 
lAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments 
also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain 
retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred 
indefinitely until the completion of a broader review. 

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) - In response to concerns 
regarding temporary accounting mismatches and volatility, and increased costs and complexity, the Board issued 
amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts in 2017. The two optional solutions raised some considerations which 
required detailed analysis and management judgement. On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance Contracts in 
June 2020, the end date for applying the two options under the IFRS 4 amendments was extended to 1 January 
2023, aligned with the effective date of IFRS 17. 

The Operator has determined that it is eligible for the temporary exemption option since the operator has not 
previously applied any version of IFRS 9, its activities are predominantly connected with insurance as the 
percentage of the total carrying amount of its liabilities connected with insurance relative to the total carrying amount 
of all its liabilities is greater than 90 percent and the operator doesn't engage in significant activities unconnected 
with insurance based on historical available information. Under the temporary exemption option, the operator can 
defer the application of lFRS 9 until the application IFRS 17 (applicable for the accounting periods beginning on or 
after 01 January 2022). 

To determine the appropriate classification of financial assets under IFRS 9, an entity would need to assess the 
contractual cash flows characteristics of any financial asset. Indeed, the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding (SPPl") i.e. cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. In a basic lending 
arrangement, consideration for the time value of money and credit risk are typically the most significant elements of 
interest. 

IFRS 9 defines the terms "principal" as being the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition, and the "interest" 
as being compensation for (i) the time value of money, and (ii) the credit risk associated with the principal amount 
outstanding during a particular period of time. 

The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value 
during that period for the following two groups of financial assets separately: 

a) financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the 
definition of held for trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, 
and 

b) all other financial assets. 



Cash and bank * 2,283 
Investments in term deposits - 55,000 
Loans and other rece1vab1e5 2 
Qard-e-Hasna receivable 4,000 
Accrued investment income 552 
Receivable from PTF 8,986 
Total 70,823 

1833 
48000 

- 
7,500 

466 
10,139 

- 67,938 

Operator's fund 31 December2020 31 December2019 

 

Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test Fail the SPPl test Pass the SPPl test 

  

Financial assets Fair value 

Change In 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

Fair value 

Change In
Change in Change in 

unrealized 
Fair value unrealized gain Fair value unrealized gain 

gain during during the year during the year 
the year 

(Rupees in 000)  

     

Cash and bank 
Investments in term deposits 
Loans and other receivables* 

Qard-e-Hasna receivable 
Accrued investment income 
Receivable from PTF 
Total 

Cash and bank * 
Investments in term deposits 
Loans and other receivables* 

Qard-e-Hasna receivable 
Accrued investment income 
Receivable from PTF 
Total 

31 December 2020  
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the 

SPPI test  
AAA AA+ A+ Not rated 

(Rupees in 000)  

1,458 9 816 - 
55,000 - 

- 2 
4,000 

552 
- 8,986 

1,458 9 55,816 13.540 

31 December2019 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the 

SPPI test 
AA.A AA+ A+ Not rated 

(Rupees in '000)  

1,660 6 167 
48,000 

7,500 
466 

10,139 
1,660 6 48,167 18,105 

* The carrying amounts of these financial assets measured applying lAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 

Participants' Takaful Fund 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

 

Fail the SPPl test Pass the SPPI test  Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test 

Financial assets Fair value 

Change in 
unrealIzed 
gain during 

the year 

Fair value 

Change In Change in 
unrealized Fair value unrealized gain 
gain during during the year 

the year 
(Rupees in '000)  

Change in 
Fair value unrealized gain 

during the year 

     

     

Cash and bank * 4,416 - - 3,009 

Investments in debt securities - - - 11,880 

Investments in term deposits 40,000 14,000 

Loans and other receivables* 1,015 780 

Due from takaful participants 14,422 34,263 

Accrued investment income 374 410 
Total 60.227 64,342 

31 December2020  
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the 

SPPI test  
AAA AA+ A+ Not rated 

(Rupees in '000) 

Cash and bank * 
Investments in term deposits 
Loans and other receivables* 

Due from takaful participants 
Accrued investment income 
Total 

3,768 561 79 8 
- 40,000 - 

1,015 
14,422 

374 
3,768 561 40,079 15.819 

31 December2019 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the 

SPPI test 
AM AA+ A+ Not rated 

(Rupees in '000)  

 

 

Cashandbank 2,210 512 279 8 

Investments in term deposits - 14,000 

Investments in debt securities 11,880 

Loans and other rece1vab1es 780 

Due from takaful participants - 34,263 

Accrued investment income - 410 

Total 2,210 512 26,159 35,461  

* The carrying amounts of these financial assets measured applying lAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 



Operators fund 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
Fail the SPPl test Pass the SPPl test  Fail the SPPl test Pass the SPPl test 

Financial assets Fair value 

Change in 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

Fair value 

Change in 
unrealized

Fair value 
gain during 

the year 
(Rupees in 000)  

Change in 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

Fair value 

Change in 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

       

Cash and bank * 2,283 1,833 
Investments in term deposits 55,000 - 48,000 
Loans and other receivables* 2 
Qard-e-Hasna receivable 4,000 7,500 
Accrued investment income 552 466 
Receivable from PTF 8,986 10,139 
Total 70,823 - 67,938 

31 December 2020 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the SPPI test 

AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- 
(Rupees in 000)  

Not rated 

Cash andbank* 1,458 9 - 816 
Investments in term deposits 55,000 
Loans and other receivables* 2 
Qard-e-Hasna receivable 4,000 
Accrued investment income 552 
Receivable from PTF - 8,986 
Total 1,458 9 55,816 13,540 

31 December2019 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the SPPI test 

AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- 
(Rupees in '000)  

Not rated 

Cash and bank* 1,660 6 167 
Investments in term deposits 48,000 
Loans and other receivables* 

Qard-e-Hasna receivable 7,500 
Accrued investment income 466 
Receivable from PTF - - 10,139 
Total 1,660 6 48,167 18,105 

* The carrying amounts of these financial assets measured applying lAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 

Participants' Takaful Fund 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

    

Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test  Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test 

Change in Change in 
unrealized unrealized 

Financial assets Fair value . Fair value 
gain during gain during 

the year the year 

(Rupees in 000) 

Change in 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

Fair value 

Change in 
unrealized 
gain during 

the year 

Fair value 

Cash and bank * 4,416 3,009 
Investments in debt securities - 11,880 
Investments in term deposits 40,000 14,000 
Loans and other receivables* - 1,015 780 

Due from takaful participants - 14,422 34,263 
Accrued investment income 374 - 410 
Total 60,227 64,342 

31 December2020 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the SPPI test 

AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- 
(Rupees in 000)  

Not rated 

Cash andbank* 3,768 561 79 8 

Investments in term deposits 40,000 
Loans and other receivables* 1,015 

Due from takaful participants 14,422 

Accrued investment income - - 374 

Total 3,768 561 - 40,079 15,819 

31 December2019 
Gross carrying amounts of financial assets that pass the SPPI test 

MA AA AA- A+ A A- 
(Rupees in '000)  

Not rated 

Cash and bank* 2,210 512 279 - 8 

Investments in debt securities - 11,880 

Loans and other receivables* 14,000 780 

Due from takaful participants 34,263 

Accrued investment income 410 

Total 2,210 512 26,159 35,461 

* The carrying amounts of these financial assets measured applying lAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies as stated below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these 
financial statements, except for the change mentioned below. 

3.1 Application of General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO 1416 (1) 2019 dated 20 November 2019 has issued 
General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019. Accordingly, the Operator has changed the format for the preparation 
and presentation of these financial statements to comply with the requirements of these regulations. The application of 
these regulations for the purpose of preparation and presentation of the financial statements are effective from 01 
January 2020. Accordingly, corresponding figures have been presented in accordance with the new regulations. 
However, the change have had no impact on the profit I loss of the Operators' Fund, surplus / deficit of the Participants' 
Takaful Fund or their respective fund balances. Significant change in the statement of financial position are given in 
note 27 of these financial statements. 

3.2 Takaful contracts 

The takaful contracts are based on the principles of Wakala. The takaful contracts so agreed usually inspire concept of 
tabarru (to donate for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of eliminating the element 
of uncertainty. 

Contracts under which the Participant Takaful Fund (PTF) accepts significant takaful risk from another party (the 
participant) by agreeing to compensate the participant if a specified uncertain future event (the takaful event) adversely 
affects the participant, are classified as takaful contracts. Takaful risk is significant if a takaful event could cause the PTF 
to pay the significant benefits due to the happening of the takaful event compared to its non happening. Once a contract 
has been classified as a takaful contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the takaful 
risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired. 

3.2.1 Contribution Income 

For all the takaful contracts, contributions and administrative surcharge under a contract are recognized at the time of 
writing of takaful contract. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the contract, contribution is 
recognized as revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. The portion of contribution written relating 
to the unexpired period of coverage is recognized as unearned contribution by the Company. This liability is calculated 
as a proportionate of the gross contribution of each takaful contract, as specified in General Takaful Accounting 
Regulations, 2019. 

Receivables under takaful contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less 
provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Company reduces 
the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognizes it as impairment loss. 

3.2.2 Claims 

Takaful claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, related internal and external claims 
handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and any adjustments to claims 
outstanding from previous years. 

The Operator recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheet date which is based on the best 
estimate of the claims intimated or assessed on or before the end of the financial year and measured at the 
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident 
giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in an takaful contract. 

The liability for claims include related to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected 
claim settlement cost. 

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (lBNR) is made at the balance sheet date on the advice of actuary in 
accordance with the requirements of SECP circular No. 9 of 2016. IBNR claim have been estimated using Chain Ladder 
(CL) method and claims run-off triangles are based on reported claims and quarterly development period. 

3.2.3 Contribution deficiency reserve 

The Operator is required as per General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 and lFRS-4 "Insurance Contracts", to 
maintian a provision respect of contribution deficiency for the class of business where the unearned contribution reserve 
is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses, including 
reinsurance expense, commissionsand other underwriting expenses, to be incurred after balance sheet date in respect 



of policies in that class of business at the balance sheet date. The movement in the contribution deficiency reserve is 
recorded as an expense and the same shall be recognised as a liability. For this purpose, loss ratio estimates are based 
on historical claim development. Judgment is used in assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or 
the effects of one-off claims. If the ratio is adverse, contribution deficiency is determined. 

Based on operating ratio for the expired period, the management considers that the unearned contribution reserve as at 
the year end is adequate to meet the expected future liability, from claims and other expenses, expected to beincurred 
after the balance sheet date in respect of policies enforce at the balance sheet date. Hence, no provision for the same 
has been made in these financial statements. The valuation of contribution deficiency reserve is done by using 
acturialmethods by projecting expected future claims and expenses to be incurred after the valuation date for the 
portfolio inforce as at the balance sheet date. 

3.2.4 Wakala fee 

The Operator of Window Takaful manages the general takaful operations for the participants and charges wakala fee to 
meet the general and administrative expenses. It is recognised upfront on the issue of takaful contract. 

3.2.5 Takaful surplus 

Takaful surplus attributable to the participants is calculated after charging all direct costs and setting aside various 
reserves. Allocation to participants, if applicable, is made after adjustment of claims paid to them during the period. 

3.2.6 Modarib's fee 

The Operator also manages the participants' investment as modarib and charges 15 % (2019: 30%) of investment 
income and profit on saving accounts earned by the PTF as Modarib's fee. It is recognized on the same basis on which 
related revenue is recognized. 

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes include cash in hand, policy stamps, bank balances and the term 
deposit receipts having a maturity of not more than twelve months and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. 

3.4 Operating fixed assets and depreciation 

3.4.1 Tangible 

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depreciation is calculated on 
the straight line basis using the following rates: 

— Office equipments 20% 
— Motor vehicles 20% 

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant. 

Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use, while no 
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. 

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account currently. 

Gains or losses on disposal of fixed assets are included in profit & loss account currently. 

3.5 Commission Expense 

Commission expenses incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognised in PTF as an expense in 
accordance with pattern of recognition of contribution revenue. 

3.6 Investment income 

Profit on bank deposits and sukuk certificate is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective 
yield. 

Gain I loss on sale I redemption of investments is taken to profit and loss account in the year of sale I redemption. 



Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. 

3.7 Taxation 

3.7.1 Current 

Provision for current taxation is the higher of the amount computed on taxable income at the current tax rate after taking 
into account tax credits / rebates, if any, and the minimum tax computed at the prescribed rate on turnover. 

3.7.2 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences at the balance sheet 
date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred 
tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax 
credits to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

3.8 Employee retirement benefits 

3.8.1 Compensated absences 

The liability towards compensated absences accumulated by employees is provided in the period in which they are 
earned. 

3.9 Creditors, accruals and provisions 

Liabilities for creditors and other amount payable are carried at fair value which is the cost of the consideration to be paid 
in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Window Takaful Operator. 

Provisions are recognized when the Operator has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimate. 

3.10 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 
when the Operator has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and it intends either to settle on a net 
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

3.11 Impairment 

A financial asset is assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is 
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if there is objective evidence that one or more events have had a 
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment of any asset or group of assets. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. 
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

All impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account. Provisions for impairment are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Changes in the provisions are recognized as 
income or expense. 

3.12 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the WTO becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the WTO losses control of contractual rights that comprises the 
financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liabilities is recognised in the profit and 
loss account of the current period. 



3.13 Qard-e-Hasna 

If there is a deficit of admissible assets over its liabilities in the PTF, the Operator from the Operator's fund may provide 
Qard-e-Hasna to the PTF so that the PTF may become solvent as per Takaful Rules, 2012. The balance of Qard-e-
hasna is tested for impairment at each reporting date. 

As required under regulation 11(2) to the General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019, the Operator performed 
impairment testing of Qard-e-Hasna balance of Rs. 4 million, given by Participant's Takaful Fund (PTF) to it, as at 31 
December 2020. 

The calculation of recoverable amount for the purpose of impairment testing was based on value in use, estimated using 
discounted cash flows. Key assumptions used were as follows: 

Assumptions How Determined 
Budgeted Cash flows Budgeted Earnings before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDA) and estimated cash flows 

were based on past experience duly adjusted for changes in working capital. 
Pre-Tax Risk Adjusted 
Discount Rate 

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate of 16.9% was used in the calculation. This discount rate 
represents cost of capital determined using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) approach 
based on risk free rate of return for ten year Pakistan Investment Bonds (PlBs) issued by the 
Government of Pakistan adjusted for risk premium and systematic risks. 

Long Term Growth Rate Discounted cash flow projections for five years have been used and long term growth rate of 
5% in perpetuity has been assumed on the basis of nominal Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
growth rate for the country of operations. 

As part of impairment testing, the management has assured reasonably that impact of possible changes in any of the 
aforementioned key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of Qard-e-Hasna to exceed its recoverable amount. 

3.14 Allocation of management expenses 

Expenses of management of the Window Takaful Operations have been charged to the Operator's Fund on a basis 
deemed equitable by the operator. 

3.15 Available for sale investments 

Investments which are not elegible to be classified as "fair value through profit or loss" or "held to maturity" are classified 
as "available for sale. These investments are intented to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in 
response to the need for liquidity, changes in interest rates, equity prices or exhange rates are classified as avaiable-for-
sale. 

Quoted: Subsequent to initial recognition, These investments are remeasured at fair value, Gains or losses on 
investments on remeasurement of these investments are recognised in statement of comprehensive income. 

Unquoted: these investments are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

4. USE OF ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in period of revision and future periods if 
the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The estimates and judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements are included in the following 
notes: 

Note 
Provision for unearned contribution 3.2.1 
Contribution due but unpaid. 3.2.1 
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 3.2.2 
Contribution deficiency reserve 3.2.3 
Residual values and useful lives of fixed assets 3.4 
Taxation 3.7 
Impairment 3.11 
Allocation of management expenses 3.14 
Classification and valuation of investments 3.15 



5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENTS - Operator's Fund 

31 December2020 
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Book value 

As at Additions I As at As at charge for As at As at Depreciation 
1 January (disposals) 31 December 1 January the year 31 December 31 December rate 

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 % 
(Rupees in 000)  

897 897 493 180 673 224 20% 

7 17 24 4 3 7 17 20% 

Tangible operating assets 

Motor Vehicle 

Office equipments 

904 17 921 497 183 680 241 

31 December2019 
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Book value 

As at Additions I As at As at charge for As at As at Depreciation 
1 January (disposals) 31 December 1 January the year 31 December 31 December rate 

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 % 
(Rupees in 000)  

Motor Vehicle 897 - 897 314 179 493 404 20% 

Office equipments 7 7 2 2 4 3 20% 

904 904 316 181 497 407 

6. INVESTMENTS 31 December 2020 31 December 2019  
Cost Impairment! Carrying Cost Impairment I Carrying Value 

Note (provision) Value (provision) 
(Rupees in '000)  

6.1 Operator's Fund - Available for sale 

6.1.1 Investment in Term Deposit Receipts 

Deposits maturing within 3 months 6.1.1.1 55,000 55,000 48,000 48,000 

55,000 55,000 48,000 48,000 

6.1.1.1 These held with a Islamic Bank have tenure of three months (2019: one month) and expected profit at the rate of 6.75% per annum (31 December 2019 at 
the rate of 12.25% per annum). 

6.2 Participant Takaful Fund - Available for sale 

6.2.1 Investment in Term Deposit Receipts 

Deposits maturing within 3 months 6.2.1.1 40,000 40,000 14,000 14,000 

40,000 40,000 14,000 14,000 

6.2.1.1 These held with a Islamic Bank have tenure of three months (2019: one month) and expected profit at the rate of 6.75% per annum (31 December 2019 
12.25% per annum). 

6.2.2 GOP - Sukuk 

GOP - Ijarah Sukuk 12,006 12,006 

6.2.2.1 Fair value (deficit) on available for sale investment - net 
charge to other comprehensive income (126) 

12,006 - 11.880 

6.2.2.2 The GOP Ijara Sukuk face value of Rs.12 million have matured on June 30, 2020; Effective rate of this sukuk was 5.14% (31 December 2019 5.14%) per 
annum. 

31 December 31 December 
2020 2019 

7. QARD-E-HASNA - RECEIVABLE (Rupees in '000)  

Opening Balance of Qard-e-Hasna 7,500 2,500 

Qard-e-Hasna transferred from OPF during the year 1,500 5,000 

Qard-e-Hasna returned by PTF during the year (5,000)  

Closing Balance of Qard-e-I-Iasna 4,000 7,500  

7.1 The ability of Participants' Takaful Fund to repay Qard-e-Hasna to the Operator's Fund was tested for impairment as required under regulation 11(2) to the 
General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2019, by preparing financial projections for five years. Based on the financial projections prepared by the 
management, the balance is expected to be paid by the end of 2022. 

2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

8. DEFERRED TAXATION 
Deferred debits arisinq in resDect of: 
Accelerated accounting depreciation 70 43 

 

 



9. LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good 

Other receivable 
Due from a hospital 

Note 

Operators Fund Participants' Takaful Fund 
31 December 31 December 31 December 

2020 2019 2020 
(Rupees in 000)  

2 
1,015 

31 December 
2019 

780 

2 1,015 780 

RECEIVABLE I PAYABLE (Current account 
between OPF and PTF) 

Wakala fee receivable / (payable) 8,851 10068 (8,851) (10,068) 
Modarib fee receivable / (payable) 135 71 (135) (71) 

8,986 10,139 (8,986) (10,139) 

Other (payable) / receivable (454) (427) 454 427 
8,532 9,712 (8,532) (9,712) 

CASH&BANK 

Cash and Cash Equivalent 
- Policy and revenue stamps 8 8 

Cash at bank 
- Current accounts 5 1 5 1 
- Saving accounts 2,278 1,832 4,403 3,000 

2,283 1,833 4,416 3,009 

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 

Agents commission payable 2,571 2,507 
Other payable 361 491 1 576 
Stale Cheques 12.1 119 31 
Annual supervision fee payable to SECP 49 29 182 111 
Payable to Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited 12.2 1,430 636 

4,411 3,663 302 718 

Stale Cheques - Age-Wise Breakup Participants' Takaful Fund 
I to 6 months 7 to 12 months 13 to 24 months Above 24 Aggregate Aggregate 

months 2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000) 

Claims and contribution refund not encashed 64 48 1 6 119 31 

            

12.2 This represents payable in respect of expenses paid by Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited on behalf of Operator's Fund. 

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

13.1 CONTINGENCIES 

13.1.1 PROVINCIAL SALES TAX ON HEALTH INSURANCE I TAKAFUL 

13.1.1.1 Under the Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011, Sindh sales tax (SST) is payable on contribution on corporate health takaful policies written in the province of Sindh. However, the 
Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) vide its notification SRB-3-4/5/2019 dated 8 May 2019 has exempted SST for the period from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. This exemption 
is extended by SRB vide its notification SRB-3-4/16/2019 dated 27 June 2019 till 30 June 2020. SRB further extended SST exemption vide its notification SRB-3-
4/14/2020 dated 22 June 2020 till 30 June 2021. 

13.1.1.2 With effect from November 1, 2018, the Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA), withdrew the exemption on health takaful. However, PRA vide its notification SO(Tax) 1-
110/2020 (Covid-19) dated 2 April 2020 exempted PST on health takaful for the period from April 2 2020 till 30 June 2020. 

This being a collective issue of the industry, the Insurance Association of Pakistan (lAP) had taken up the matter with the Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA) for restoration 
of the exemptions that were withdrawn. The management of the Operator sought a legal opinion from their legal advisors, who confirmed the Company's contention that 
health takaful is not a service, but intact, an underwriter's promise to pay to its contract holders in the future, as is also clearly defined in the definition of the term 
"insurance" under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. Such contention of the Operator and the insurance industry has also been upheld in the superior courts of foreign 
jurisdiction, where, in a majority of jurisdictions it has been widely held that insurance is not a service. 

Based on the above contentions, the Company and other takaful companies have challenged the levy of Punjab Sales Tax (PST) on health takaful in the Hon'ble Lahore 
High Court (LHC) in the month of September 2019. The Hon'ble LHC, in their order dated 3 October 2019, has granted a stay to the Company and all petitioners against 
any coercive measures for recovery by the PRA. The hearing of the petition is currently in progress. In view of the pending adjudication, the Operator, has not charged 
PST to its clients, nor recognized the contingent amount of PST liability in these financial statements as the management is confident that the final outcome will be in favor 
of the Operator. 

In view of the above, the Operator is not charging sales tax on the policies written in the province of Punjab, nor has recognized the liability for PST in financial 
statements. The amount involved as of 31 December 2020, except for the exempt period, amounts to Rs. 17.67 million. 

13.2 There are no commitments as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil). 

10.  

11.  

12.  

12.1 



PARTICIPANTS' TAKAFUL FUND: 

Accident and Health 
14. NET TAKAFUL CONTRIBUTION  2020 2019 

Note (Rupees in '000)  

Written gross contribution 140,487 144,940 
Less: Wakala Fee - net (34,997) (29,485) 
Contribution Net of Wakala Fee 105,490 115,455 

Add: Unearned contribution reserve - opening 44,678 41,186 
Less: Unearned contribution reserve - closing (23,449) (44,678) 
Contribution Earned 126,719 111,963  

15. TAKAFUL BENEFITS I CLAIMS EXPENSE 

Claim Paid (114,790) (115,596) 
Add: Outstanding claims including IBNR - opening 18,264 11,255 
Less: Outstanding claims including lBNR - closing (25,937) (18,264) 
Claims Expense (122,463) (122,605) 

OPERATOR'S FUNDS: 

16. COMMISSION EXPENSE 

Commission paid or payable (10,185) (9,734) 
Less: Deferred commission expense - opening (1,955) (1,735) 
Add: Deferred commission expense - closing 989 1,955  
Commission Expense (11,151) (9,514) 

17. WAKALA FEE 

The Operator of Window Takaful manages the general health takaful operations for the participants and charges 
wakala fee ranging from 15% to 40% on corporate contract holders and charges wakala fee 49% on new individual 
contract holder and 35% on renewed individual contract holder. 

18. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES - Operator's Fund 

Employee benefit cost 
Shariah advisor fee 
Rent, taxes and electricity 
Communication 
Printing and stationery 
Travelling and business promotion 
Depreciation 
Repairs and maintenance 
Advertisement and sales promotion 
Bank Charges 
Information technology expenses 
Annual supervision fee SECP 
Takaful expenses 
Data card printing expense 
Legal and professional charges 
Other expenses 

18.1 Employee benefit cost  

18.1 14,856 11,966 
960 960 
326 698 
469 447 
152 218 
804 886 

5 2,438 1,735 
354 193 
36 19 

136 68 
464 406 

49 29 
187 152 
470 400 
749 711 

84 82 
22,534 18,970 

Salaries, allowance and other benefits 
Charges for post employment benefits - provident fund 

14,767 11,885 
89 81 

14,856 11,966 



313 
(6) 

628 
(11) 

Accident and Health 
2020 2019 

Note • (Rupees in '000)  

19. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - Operator's Fund 

Auditors' remuneration 19.1 402 273 
402 273 

19.1 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION - OPF 

Auditfees 228 131 
Interim review 65 59 
Out of pocket expenses 46 23 
Shariah compliance audit fee 63 60 

402 273 

20. INVESTMENT INCOME 

20.1 Participant's Fund: 

Income from debt securities - available for sale 

- Return on government securities 
- Amortization of premium I discount relative to par 

307 617 
Return on term deposits - held to maturity 

- Return on term deposit 

Total investment income 

Less: Investment related expenses 

Net Investment Income 

20.2 Operator's Fund: 

Income from equity - available for sale 

- Dividend income 

Return on term deposits - held to maturity 

- Return on term deposit 

Net realised gains on investments - 
Available for sale financial assets 

2,734 2897 

3,041 3,514 

(3) (3) 

3,038 3,511 

512 

3,746 2,669 

Realised gains on sale of units of mutual funds I ,209 

Total investment income 3,746 4,390 

Less: Investment related expenses (3) (3) 

Net Investment Income 3,743 4,387  



21. MODARIB'S FEE 

The Operator also manages the participants' investment as modarib and charges 15 % (2019: 30%) of 
investment income and profit on saving accounts earned by the PTF as Modarib's fee. 

Accident and Health 
2020 2019 

22. TAXATION - OPF (Rupees in '000)  

For the year 
- Current (3,674) (534) 
- Deferred 27 25  

(3,647) (509) 

22.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit I (loss) 

Applicable tax rate 
Profit for the year before taxation 

29% 29% 
5,662 6,832 

    

Tax amount at applicable rate (1,642) (1,980) 
Tax effect of taxable income for previous year (2,005) 2,005 
Tax amounts taxed at a minimum tax rate u/s 113 of the Ordinance - (534) 

(3,647) (509) 

23. MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS - available for sale 

23.1 Participant's Fund (Rupees in '000) 

At beginning of 1 January 2019 11,785 
Additions 308,000 
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (294,000) 
Unrealized deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 106 
Amortization / accretion of premium / discount relative to par (11) 

Balance as of 31 December 2019 25,880 

Additions 436,000 
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (422,000) 
Reversal of unrealized deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 126 
Amortization / accretion of premium / discount relative to par (6) 
At end of current period December 31, 2020 40,000  

23.2 Operator's Fund 

At beginning of 1 January 2019 44,918 

Additions 307,121 

Disposals (sale and redemptions) (303,985) 
Reversal of unrealized gain on revaluation of available-for-sale investments (54) 

Balance as of 31 December 2019 48,000 

Additions 508,500 
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (501,500) 

At end of current period December 31, 2020 55,000  



24. MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFUL AND FINANCIAL TAKAFUL UNITS RELATED RISK 

24.1 Takaful risk management 

Takaful risk 

The risk under any one Takaful contract is the possibility that the covered event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. 
By very nature of a takaful contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risk that the Operator faces under its takaful 
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the takaful liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of 
claims is greater than estimated. Takaful events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims will vary from year to year from the 
level established. 

The Operator has developed its underwriting strategy to diversify the takaful risks accepted and to achieve a sufficiently large population of 
risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. 

(a) Frequency and severity of claims 

The Operator undertakes health takaful contracts. The risk arising from these contracts is concentrated in the territories in which the Company 
operates. 

The Operator also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For accident and 
health risk, multiple participants in the same geographical location which could be affected by a single event or claims incident. 

The Operator manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and proactive claims handling. 

- The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of amount of risk and industry. The 
Operator has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent claims. 

The claims payments are limited to the extent of assigned limit under the takaful contract, on occurrence of the covered event. 

The Operator has claims department dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims incurred whether reported or not. This 
department investigates and settle claims based on case manager's report / assessment. The unsettled claims are reviewed individually 
at regular intervals and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, contractual terms and conditions, and other 
factors. The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments. 

(b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments 

Claims reported and otherwise are analysed separately. The shorter settlement period for claims allows the Operator to achieve a higher 
degree of certainty about the estimated cost of claims including lBNR. 

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims and other recoveries. The Operator takes all reasonable 
steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims 
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability established. The liability comprises amount in relations to 
unpaid reported claims, IBNR, expected claims settlement costs and a provision for unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period. 

Liability in respect of outstanding claims is based on the best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed. In calculating the estimated cost of 
unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Operators estimation techniques are a combination of loss development and ultimate loss ratio 
method. 

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Operator considers any information available from case managers 
assessment and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Claims are assessed on a case-by-
case basis separately. 

(c) Process used to decide on assumptions 

The risks associated with takaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. 
This exposure is geographically concentrated in Pakistan only. 

The Operator uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and market data to measure its related claims liabilities. Internal data is derived 
mostly from the Operator's monthly claims reports, case manager's report for particular claim and screening of the actual takaful contracts 
carried out to derive data for the contracts held. The Operators reviews the individual contracts and in particular the industries in which the 
covered companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This information is used to develop related provision for outstanding 
claims (both reported and non-reported). 

The choice of selected results depends on an assessment of the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical 
developments. Through this analysis, the Operator determines the need for an IBNR or an unexpired risk liability to be held at each reporting 
date. 

(d) Changes in assumptions 

The Operator did not change its assumptions for the takaful contracts as disclosed in (b) and (c) above. 

(e) Sensitivity analysis 

The analysis of exposure described in paragraph (c) above is also used to test the sensitivity of the selected assumptions to changes in the key 
underlying factors. Assumptions of different levels have been used to assess the relative severity of subsidence claims given past experience. 

The risks associated with the takaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which complicate quantitative sensitivity 
analysis. The Operator makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims development experience. This includes indications 



such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected loss ratios. The Operator considers that the liability for claims recognised 
in the balance sheet is adequate. However, actual experience will differ from the expected outcome. 

As the Operator enters into short term takaful contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market conditions on 
unexpired risks. However, results of sensitivity testing assuming 10% change in the claim incidence showing effect on underwriting results and 
fund is set out below: 

PTF 
2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  
Impact of change in claims by +10% 
Accident and health 

Impact of change in claims by -10% 
Accident and health 

Concentration of takaful risk 

(12,246) (12,261) 

12,246 12,261 

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single takaful contract issued to a particular type of participants, within a geographical location or 
types of commercial business. The Operator is not subject to significant concentration of risk as for each member, risk is further restricted by 
individual sub limits. 

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarised below by reference to liabilities: 
Gross sum covered 

2020 2019 
(Rupees in '000)  

Accident and Health 14,414,438 15,309,547 

Claims development tables 

For the segment of accident and health, the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claim payments is usually resolved within a year 
Further, claims with significant uncertainties are not outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and for this reason separate disclosure of such 
claims have not been given. 

24.2 Financial risk management 

The Board of Directors of the Operator has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Operator's risk management 
framework. The risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the board of directors. The Operator has 
exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 
- Market risk 

24.2.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the 
other party to incur a financial loss. The Operator attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with 
a large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

24.2.1.1 Exposure to credit risk 

Credit risk of the Operator arises principally from the investments (except for investment in government securities), contribution due but 
unpaid. 

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure, as specified below: 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
Operator's Fund Participants' 

Takaful Fund 
(Rupees in '000)  

Operator's Fund Participants' 
Takaful Fund 

(Rupees in '000)  

Bank balance 2,283 4,416 1,833 3,009 

Investments - other than Government Securities 55,000 40,000 48,000 14,000 

Contribution due but unpaid 14,422 - 34,263 

Accrued investment income 552 374 466 410 

Wakala fees receivable 8,851 - 10,068 
Modarib fees receivable 135 - 71 - 
Sundry receivables 2 1,015 - 780 

66,823 60,227 60,438 52,462 

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows: 

Rating 

MA 1,458 3,768 1,660 2,210 

A.A+ 9 561 6 512 

A+ 816 79 167 279 

2,283 4,408 1,833 3,001 



Concentration of credit risk 

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change in 
economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. Sector-wise analysis of 
contribution due but unpaid at the reporting date was: 

31 December2020 31 December2019 
Participants' Takaful Fund Participants' Takaful Fund 

(Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in '000) % 

Textile 7,691 53.3% 8,315 24.3% 
Foods And Beverages 2,669 18.6% 1,070 3.1% 
Construction & Engineering 2,642 18.3% 23,797 69.5% 
Financial Services 898 6.2% 352 1.0% 
Technology and Communication 398 2.8% 94 0.3% 
Distribution and Logistics Services 77 0.5% 199 0.6% 
Miscellaneous 47 0.3% 296 0.9% 
Travel & Tours 111 0.3% 
Education - 24 0.1% 
Pharmaceuticals - 5 0.0% 

14,422 100% 34,263 100% 

The management monitors exposure to credit risk on contribution recoverable from participants' through regular review and prudent estimates 
of provision for doubtful debts. As at 31 December 2020, the contribution due but unpaid represents amount receivable within one year 
amounting to Rs. 14.42 million (2019: Rs. 34.26 million). 

24.2.1.2 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Operator will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises 
because of the possibility that the Operator could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Operator's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Operator's reputation. The Operator ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet 
expected operational requirements. The Operator also manages this risk by investing in deposit accounts that can be readily encashed. 
Financial liabilities includes (a) Provision for outstanding claims (b) Accrued expenses (c) Other payables. 

Following are the maturities of financial liabilities: 
31 December 2020 

Operator's Fund Participants' Takaful Fund 
Carrying Contractual Carrying Contractual 
amount cash amount cash 

flows up to flows up to 
onevear oneyear 

(Rupees in '000)  
Non-derivative 
Financial liabilities 

Provision for outstanding claims 
Accrued expenses 
Agent balances 
Payable to Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited 
Other payables 

Non-derivative 
Financial liabilities 

- - 25,937 (25,937) 
908 (908) 9 (9) 

2,571 (2,571) - - 
1,430 (1,430) - - 

410 (410) 302 (302) 
5,319 (5,319) 26,248 (26,248) 

31 December2019 
Operator's Fund Participants' Takaful Fund 

Carrying Contractual Carrying Contractual 
amount cash amount cash 

flows up to flows up to 
one year one year 

(Rupees in '000)  

24.2.1.3 

Provision for outstanding claims - 18,264 (18,264) 
Accrued expenses 600 (600) 27 (27) 
Agent balances 2,507 (2,507) - - 
Payable to Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited 636 (636) - - 
Other payables 520 (520) 718 (718) 

4,263 (4,263) 19,009 (19,009) 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, profit rates and equity prices will affect the Operator's 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. All transactions are carried in Pak Rupees therefore, the Operator is not 
exoosed to currency risk. However, the Ocerator is exoosed to orofit rate risk and other price risk. 

24.2.1.4 Profit rate risk 

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market profit rates. 
Major part of the profit rate exposure arises from balances held in profit and loss sharing accounts with reputable banks. 



0perat0rs Fund 2020 

Financial assets 

Profit bearing Non-profit bearing Total 

Maturity Maturity 

up to one after one 

year year 

Sub total Maturity Maturity 

up to one after one 

year year 

(Rupees in 000)  

Sub total 

Cash and bank deposits 2,278 - 2,278 5 5 2,283 

Investments 55,000 55,000 - - 55,000 
Accrued investment income 552 - 552 552 
Wakala fees receivable - - 8,851 8,851 8,851 
Modarib fees receivable - 135 - 135 135 

Other receivables 2 2 2 

57,278 57,278 9,545 9,545 66,823 

Financial liabilities 

Accrued expenses 908 908 908 

Agent balances 2,571 2,571 2,571 

Payable to Allianz EFU Health 
Insurance Limited 1,430 1,430 1,430 

Other payables 864 864 864 

5,773 5,773 5,773 

On balance sheet gap 57,278 - 57,278 3,772 3,772 61,050 

0perat0r5 Fund 2019 

Profit bearing Non-profit bearing Total 

Maturity Maturity Sub total Maturity Maturity Sub total 

up to one after one up to one after one 

year year year year 

(Rupees in 000)  

Financial assets 

Cash and bank deposits 1,832 1,832 1 1 1,833 

Investments 48,000 48,000 48,000 

Accrued investment income 466 466 466 

Wakala fees receivable - 10,068 10,068 10,068 

Modarib fees receivable 71 71 71 

49,832 - 49,832 10,606 10,606 60,438 

Financial liabilities 

Accrued expenses 600 600 600 

Agent balances 2,507 2,507 2,507 

Payable to Allianz EFU Health 
Insurance Limited 636 - 636 636 

Other payables 947 947 947 

4,690 4,690 4,690 

On balance sheet gap 49,832 49,832 5,916 5,916 55,748 



Participants' Takaful Fund 

Financial assets 

2020 
Profit bearing Non-profit bearing Total 

Maturity Maturity 
up to one after one 

year year 

Sub total Maturity Maturity 
up to one after one 

year year 
(Rupees in '000)  

Sub total 

Cash and bank deposits 4,403 4,403 13 13 4,416 
Investments 40,000 40,000 - - 40,000 
Contribution due but unpaid - 14,422 14,422 14,422 
Receivable from OPF 454 454 454 
Accrued investment income 374 374 374 
Other receivables 1,015 1,015 1,015 

44,403 44,403 16,278 16,278 60,681 

Financial liabilities 

Provision for outstanding claims 25,937 25,937 25,937 
Contribution received in advance 3,505 3,505 3,505 
Wakala fees payable 8,851 8,851 8,851 
Modarib fees payable 135 135 135 
Other payables 302 302 302 

38,730 38,730 38,730 

On balance sheet gap 44,403 44,403 (22,452) (22,452) 21,951 

Participants' Takaful Fund 2019 

Financial assets 

Profit bearing Non-profit bearing Total 
Maturity Maturity 

up to one after one 
year year 

Sub total Maturity Maturity 
up to one afterone 

year year 
(Rupees in '000)  

Sub total 

Cash and bank deposits 3,000 3,000 9 9 3,009 
Investments 25,880 25,880 - - 25,880 
Contribution due but unpaid 34,263 34,263 34,263 
Receivable from OPF 427 427 427 
Accrued investment income 410 410 410 
Other receivables 780 780 780 

28,880 28,880 35,889 35,889 64,769 

Financial liabilities 

Provision for outstanding claims 18,264 18,264 18,264 
Contribution received in advance 35 35 35 
Wakala fees payable 10,068 10,068 10,068 
Modarib fees payable 71 71 71 
Other payables 718 - 718 718 

29,156 29,156 29,156 

On balance sheet gap 28,880 28,880 6,733 6,733 35,613 

Participants' Takaful Fund 

At the balance sheet date the profit rate profile of the Participant's profit-bearing financial instruments are: 

2020 2019 
Profit rate Carrying Profit rate Carrying 

(in %) value (in %) value 
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) 

Variabe rate instruments 
- Term deposit receipts 6.75% 40,000 12.25% 14,000 

- Saving accounts 2.59% to 7.66 4,403 3.8 % to 7.27% 3,000 

Operator's Fund 

At the balance sheet date the profit rate profile of the Operator's profit-bearing financial instruments is: 

2020 2019 
Profit rate Carrying Profit rate Carrying 

(in %) value (in %) value 
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) 

Variabe rate instruments 
- Term deposit receipts 6.75% 55,000 12.25% 48,000 

- Saving accounts 1.88% to 9.02  2,278 4.0 % to 7.22%  1,832 

The Operator does not account for fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in profit rates at the 
reporting date would not affect profit and loss account and equity of the Operations. 



Cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points as at 31 December 2020 would not have had a material impact on the profit and equity of the Operations. 

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

IFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

- Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 

observable. 
- Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

Following are the assets where fair value is only disclosed and is different from their carrying value: 

25.1 On balance sheet 

Operator's Fund 31 December 2020 
Carrying value 

Available for sale investment 

Available-for- 
sale 

Loans & Other 
receivables financial 

liabilities 
(Rupees in '000)  

Total 

Term Deposit Receipt* 55,000 55,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

Cash and Bank Deposits * 2,283 2,283 
Wakala fees receivable* 8,851 8,851 
Modarib fees receivable* - 135 135 

55,000 11,269 66,269 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Accrued expenses* (908) - 

Agent balances* (2,571) (2,571) 

Payable to Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited* (1,430) 
Other payables* - (410) 

55,000 11,269 (5,319) 63,698 

Operator's Fund 31 December2019 
Carrying value 

Available for sale investment 

Available-for- 
sale 

Loans & Other 
receivables financial 

& other asset liabilities 
(Rupees in '000)  

Total 

Term Deposit Receipt* 48,000 48,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

Cash and bank deposits* 1,833 - 1,833 

Wakala fees receivable* - 10,068 10,068 

Modarib fees receivable* 71 - 71 
48,000 11,972 - 59,972 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Accrued expenses* (600) - 

Agent balances* (2,507) (2,507) 

Payable to Allianz EFU Health Insurance Limited* (636) 

Other payables* (520) 
48,000 11,972 (4,263) 57,465 

* The Operator has not disclosed the fair value of these items because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. 



25.2 Participants' Takaful Fund 31 December 2020 
Carrying value Fair value 

Available- Loans & Other 
for-sale receivables financial Total Level I Level 2 Total 

& other asset liabilities 

Available for sale investment 

(Rupees in '000)  

Term Deposit Receipt* 40,000 40,000 

Financial assets not 
measured at fair value 

Cash and bank deposits* 4,416 4,416 
Due from takaful participant s* 14,422 14,422 
Accrued investment income* 374 374 
Loans and other receivable 1,015 1,015 

40,000 20,227 60,227 
Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value 

Provision for outstanding 
claims (including IBNR)* (25,937) (25,937) 

Wakala fees payable* (8,851) (8,851) 
Modarib fees payable* - (135) (135) 
Other payables* (183) (183) 

40,000 20,227 (35,106) 25,121 

Participants'Takaful Fund 31 December 2019 
Carrying value Fair value 

Available- Loans & Other 

for-sale receivables financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Total 

& other asset liabilities 

Available for sale investment 

(Rupees in '000)  

Government Securities - ljarah Sukuk 11,880 11,880 11,880 11,880 

Term Deposit Receipt* 14,000 14,000 

Financial assets not 
measured at fair value 

Cash and bank deposits* - 3,009 3,009 

Due from takaful participant s* 34,263 34,263 

Accrued investment income* 410 - 410 

Loans and other receivable 1,207 1,207 

25,880 38,889 64,769 11,880 11,880 

Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value 

Provision for outstanding 
claims (including lBNR)* (18,264) (18,264) 

Wakala fees payable* - (10,068) (10,068) 

Modarib fees payable* (71) (71) 

Other payables* (687) (687) 

25,880 38,889 (29,090) 35,679 11,880 11,880 

* The Operator has not disclosed the fair value of these items because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
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